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Julian & Grube, Inc.

Serving Ohio Local Governments
333 County Line Rd. West, Westerville, OH 43082 Phone: 614.846.1899 Fax: 614.846.2799

Independent Auditor’s Report

Bowling Green City School District
Wood County

137 Clough Street

Bowling Green, Ohio 43402

To the Board of Education:
Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities,
its major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Bowling Green City School District, Wood
County, Ohio, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements,
which collectively comprise the Bowling Green City School District’s basic financial statements as listed in the
table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for preparing and fairly presenting these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes designing, implementing,
and maintaining internal control relevant to preparing and fairly presenting financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to opine on these financial statements based on our audit. We audited in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the financial audit standards in the
Comptroller General of the United States’ Government Auditing Standards. Those standards require us to plan and
perform the audit to reasonably assure the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit requires obtaining evidence about financial statement amounts and disclosures. The procedures selected
depend on our judgment, including assessing the risks of material financial statement misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error. In assessing those risks, we consider internal control relevant to the Bowling Green City School
District's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not to the extent needed to opine on the effectiveness of the Bowling Green
City School District's internal control. Accordingly, we express no opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of management’s accounting policies and the reasonableness of their significant accounting
estimates, as well as our evaluation of the overall financial statement presentation.

We believe the audit evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to support our audit opinions.
Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, its major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Bowling Green City School District, Wood County, Ohio, as of June 30, 2013,
and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the fiscal year then
ended in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require this presentation to include
Management’s discussion and analysis on pages 3 - 9 and the Required Budgetary Comparison Schedule on page
43, as listed in the table of contents, to supplement the basic financial statements. Although this information is not
part of the basic financial statements, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board considers it essential for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America, consisting of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, to the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not opine or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient evidence to opine or provide any other assurance.

Supplementary and Other Information

Our audit was conducted to opine on the Bowling Green City School District’s basic financial statements taken as a
whole.

The Schedule of Receipts and Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule”) presents additional analysis as
required by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations and is also not a required part of the financial statements.

The Schedule is management’s responsibility, and derives from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. We subjected this Schedule to the auditing procedures
we applied to the basic financial statements. We also applied certain additional procedures, including comparing
and reconciling the Schedule directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, this Schedule is fairly stated in all material respects in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 20, 2013, on
our consideration of the Bowling Green City School District’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters.
That report describes the scope of our internal control testing over financial reporting and compliance, and the
results of that testing, and does not opine on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report
is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Bowling Green City School District’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Julian & Grube, Inc.
November 20, 2013



BOWLING GREEN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Unalysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis is requireGASB Statement No. 3Basic Financial
Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Asalyer State and Local GovernmeniBhe
purpose of this supplementary information is tovpte a narrative overview of the accompanying
financial statements although readers should algew the basic financial statements and notesito &
complete understanding of the District’s finangialformance.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

These basic financial statements include two kofdgatements that present different views of the
District:

Government-wide StatementsThese financial statements provide both longtand short-
term information about the District’s overall fir@al status.

Fund Financial StatementsThese statements focus on individual partsefistrict,
reporting the District’'s operations in more dethdn the Government-wide financial
statements.

The financial statements also include notes thalaéx some of the information in the financial
statements and provide more detailed data.

Government-wide Statements

The Government-wide statements report informatlmuathe District as a whole using accounting
similar to those used by private-sector companidge Statement of Net Position includes all of the
District’s assets and liabilities plus deferredanfs of resources. All of the current year’s raves and
expenses are accounted for in the Statement ofifkes regardless of when cash is received or paid.

The two Government-wide statements report the iDistmet position and how they have changed. Net
position (the difference between the District'seassnd liabilities plus deferred inflows of resms) is
one way to measure the District’s financial healtiposition.

* Over time, increases or decreases in the Distmgtgposition are an indicator of whether its
financial health is improving or deteriorating, pestively.

* To assess the overall health of the District orexlae¢o consider additional nonfinancial factors
such as property tax base, current property tag,land student enroliment growth and facility
conditions.

The Government-wide financial statements of therisfall into two categories:

* Governmental Activities — Most of the District'sqgrams and services are reported here
including instruction, support services, non-instianal and extracurricular activities.

* Business-type Activities — The District operatde@d service program and opens its Performing
Arts Center to outside groups for use. These diettvare intended to be self-supporting.

Fund Financial Statements
The fund financial statements provide more detditéarmation about the District’s most significant
funds rather than the District as a whole. Fumdsaacounting devices that the District uses t@kesck

of specific sources of funding and spending fotipalar purposes.

-3-



BOWLING GREEN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Unalysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Governmental Funds Most of the District’s activities are reportedGovernmental Funds, which focus
on (a) how money flows into and out of those fuadd (b) the balances left at year-end for speniding
future periods. These funds are reported usirgcaounting method called modified accrual accogntin
This method measures cash and all other finanssata that can readily be converted to cash. The
Governmental Fund statements provide a detailed-gron view of the District's general government
operations and the basic services it provides. eBouental fund information helps determine whether
there are more or fewer financial resources thateaspent in the near future to finance educadtiona
programs. The relationship (or difference) betwgevernmental activities (reported in the Governtnen
wide statements) and governmental funds is receehail the financial statements. For the fiscalyea
ended June 30, 2013 the General Fund was consitteggar” for reporting purposes due to its level of
activity and is reported separately from all otBewvernmental funds in the fund financial statements
The District implemented Governmental Accountingrfstard Board (GASB) Statement 54 in a prior
fiscal year. In accordance with GASB 54, certaiclassifications of funds were made to includerthei
activity as part of the General Fund rather thatuision in other governmental funds.

Proprietary Funds The District uses enterprise funds to repoiitgiets for which fees are charged.
These enterprise funds are the same as businesadtjpities, but provide more detail and additiona
information such as cash flows.

Fiduciary Funds- The District is the agent, or fiduciary, for Mars student-managed activity programs
and other similar programs listed as agency furdkof the District’s fiduciary activities are repted in
a separate Statement of Fiduciary Net Position.e¥¢tude these activities from the District’s other
financial statements because the assets canndtibeduby the District to finance its operations.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE
Net Position- The following table shows a comparative analgsiset position for the fiscal years ended

June 30, 2013 and 2012. The net position of tvergnmental activities has been restated as deciibe
Note 3 of the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Governmenta Activities Business-type Activities
Increase/ Increase/
2013 2012 Restated (Decrease) 2013 2012 (Decrease)
Current and other assets $ 26,606,192 $ 30,289,843 $ (3,683,651) $ 383,474 $ 322,228 $ 66,246
Capital assets, net 34,281,960 33,987,520 294,440 86,089 84,484 1605
Total assets 60,888,152 64,277,363 (3,339,211) 474,563 406,712 67851
Long-termobligations outstanding 29,542,980 30,676,746 (1,133,766) 71,288 65,0% 6,192
Other liabilities 2,867,117 4,286,926 (1,419,809) 83,842 85,348 (1506)
Total liabilities 32,410,097 34,963,672 (2,553,575) 155,130 150,444 4686
Deferred inflows 13,737,313 14,980,659 (1,243,346)
Net position
Investedin capital assets,
net of related debt 7,063,761 6,428,450 635,311 86,089 84,484 1605
Restricted 2,278,527 3,676,996 (1,398,469)
Unrestricted 5,398,454 4,227,586 1,170,868 233,344 171,784 61560
Total netposition $ 14,740,742 $ 14,333,032 $ 407,710 $ 319,433 $ 256,268 $ 63,165




BOWLING GREEN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Unalysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

The District continued to address the usefulnesss dfuildings in fiscal year 2013. After closiiglton
Elementary at the end of the 2010-2011 school gedralso moving the District’'s administrative offsc
from an old school building into a smaller officeilding, the District had no need for the vacated
buildings. The District also owned vacant land #relSouth Main Elementary building which was
closed in 2005 but leased out for one dollar par ye@ a non-profit agency. All four of these prdjss
were sold at auction with closings in July and Astg@011. Further evaluation of the remaining four
elementary buildings led to the decision to addocoand renovate Crim Elementary to have the same
number of K-5 classrooms as Conneaut and Kenwoeahé&iltaries as well as to bring preschool classes
into that building. A $1,250,000 permanent impmoeat levy tax anticipation note was issued to help
finance this construction project along with usingsting funds designated for permanent improvement
The Crim construction project was essentially catgd in December, 2012 and the new facilities were
put into use. Ridge Elementary was closed at tigeog 2012-2013 school year, bringing the number of
elementary buildings down to three for the upcon#0§3-2014 school year. [The Ridge building was
sold to the City of Bowling Green in October, 2QIhese activities account for the changes in Net
Capital Assets, the decrease in current asseteaterin current liabilities and decrease in retsii net
position from fiscal years 2012 to 2013.

Changes in Net PositionThe following table shows the changes in nettpmsior the fiscal year ending
June 30, 2013 as compared with 2012:

Governmental Activii es BusinesstypeActivie s
Increase/ Increase/
2013 Restated 2012 (Decrease) 2013 2012 (Decrease)

Revenues
Program revenues

Charges for services $ 834,069 $ 782,822 § 51,247 $ 578,881 § 601401 § (22520)

Operating grants 1,839,774 2,422,744 (582,970) 655,601 634 982 20619
General revenues

Property and income taxes 21,786,691 18,095,230 3,691,461

Unrestricted grants 9,884,330 10,351,706 (467,376) - - -

Other 155,816 353,274 (197.458) 1,604 659 945

Total revenues 34,500,680 32,005,776 2,494,904 1,236,086 1237 042 ©56)

Expenses

Instruction 19,777,954 20,526,393 (748,439)

Supportsenices 11,583,074 11,386,826 196,248

Noninstructional 580,899 354,009 226,890

Extracurricular Activities 938,530 953,921 (15,391)

Operations and Maintenance - 38,569 (38,569)

Interest and Fiscal Charges 1,171,045 1,181,021 (9,976)

Other 1,468 243,576 (242,108) - - -

Food Service - - - 1,168,370 1,186,734 (18,364)

Performing Arts Center - - - 44,551 42,102 2449

Total expenses 34,052,970 34,684,315 (631,345) 1,212,921 1228 836 (15915)

Transfers/Capital Contribution (40,000) (30,000) (10,000) 40,000 30,000 10,000
Change in Net Position 407,710 (2,708,539) 3,116,249 63,165 38 206 24959
Beginning net position 14,333,032 17,041,571 (2,708 539) 256,268 218 062 38206
Ending net assets $ 14,740,742 § 14,333,032 § 407,710 $ 319,433 § 256 268 § 63,165

Governmental Activities

The unique nature of property taxes in Ohio cretitesieed to routinely seek voter approval for
operating funds. The overall revenue generateal \ayted levy does not increase solely as a regult o
inflation. As an example, a homeowner with a hevith an assessed value of $100,000 and taxed at 1.0
mill would pay $35 in taxes at the time the levydded in. If during the County’s reappraisal Hwme’s
assessed value was increased to $200,000 (ariddiesse is comparable to increases for other pope
owners in the neighborhood) the effective tax vedelld become 0.5 mills and the owner would continue
to pay $35 in property tax. However, the effectivl millage cannot be reduced below 20 mills
according to state statute. This maintenanceenfthount of property taxes generated coupled Wwih t
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BOWLING GREEN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Unalysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

state funding method cause school districts tolaegfyureturn to voters in order for revenues tofkeace
with expenses. In addition to property taxes dessis of the school district pay .5% (one-half patgof
their income in school district income tax. Sitice District must rely heavily on voter approval of
operating tax issues, management of District ressuis of utmost concern to both the administraaioc
the voting public. The District uses a five-yeiaahcial forecast to determine whether curreniesies
can sustain operations. The last forecast inisitalfyear ended June 30, 2013 reflected a need for
additional operating resources in fiscal year 204%ed upon the assumptions used in formulating the
forecast. However, as discussed later in this e, the District took other steps to postponentexd
to place additional tax levies on the ballot aftefeat of an additional income tax and a propertylévy
in November, 2012 and May, 2013, respectively.

Property and income taxes made up 63.2% of rewsiougovernmental activities of the Bowling Green
City School District in fiscal year 2013 and 56.5%iscal year 2012. Property tax revenues in@das
fiscal year 2013. Most of this increase can berdmutied to a higher amount of property taxes being
collected before June 30, 2013 and consideredadolaifor revenue recognition coupled with a 7.8%
increase in school district income tax collections.

The following table demonstrates the District’bargce upon tax revenues:

2013 2012
Revenue Source Amount % of Total Amount % of Total
General tax revenues $ 21,786,691 63.2% $ 18,095,230 56.5%
Unrestricted grants 9,884,330 28.6% 10,351,706 32.3%
Program revenues 2,673,843 7.8% 3,205,566 10.0%
Other revenues 155,816 0.5% 353,274 1.2%
Total Revenue $ 34,500,680 100.0% $ 32,005,776 100.0%

The District saw reductions in “hold harmless” payits from the State of Ohio that were implemented t
offset the phase-out of tangible personal propesty The State’s biennial budget bill effective foe

period July 1, 2011 through June 30, 2013 reduoeskt payments by an amount not to exceed 2% of
total revenuesAccordingly, these payments dropped by $572,9980al year 2012 with a further
$578,407 reduction in 2013. Program revenuesg wecreased primarily by the expiration of the
Federal American Recovery and Reinvestment Aderdist earnings, which are reported in other
revenues, have not yet recovered from the shaimdexaused by the recessionary economy and are not
expected to for several years.

Business-type Activities

Business-type activities account for the Distriétied service program. The District also began
accounting for the usage of the Performing Artst€efPAC) by outside groups as a business-type
activity. The PAC operations were supported lardpgl a transfer from the General Fund in both fisca
years 2013 and 2012. Student lunch purchasesad®d@gain during fiscal year 2013 but were offget
an increase in the federal free and reduced luredt grogram. The net position balance continaes t
remain healthy.

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS
The District's Governmental Funds reported a comthifund balance of $9,728,752. This was a 9.4%

drop from June 30, 2012. The schedule below inelicthe fund balance and total change in fund balan
by fund type as of June 30, 2013 and 2012.



BOWLING GREEN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Unalysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Fund Balance Fund Balance Increase

June 30, 2013 June 30, 2012 (Decrease)
General Fund $ 7,771,539 $ 7,113,061 $ 658,478
Other Governmental 1,957,213 3,625,791 (1,668,578)
Total $ 9,728,752 $ 10,738,852 $ (1,010,100)

The General Fund balance rose almost 10% as d oésetluced personnel costs and purchasing. The
District has been continuing to reduce staffing rehmossible and to delay purchasing. The drop et
Governmental Funds balance again points to thefulsmds for the Crim Elementary construction
project discussed elsewhere in this presentatiba.Oistrict has continued to curtalil its overaksging
as discussed further under “Economic Factors”.

Budgetary Highlights

A supplementary schedule is included after theesltd the Financial Statements to present budgetary
information for the General Fund of the Districtv@ amendments were made to the General Fund
appropriations in fiscal year 2013: one to cover Beterson Scholarships and one for a transféieto t
Performing Arts Center Operations fund. Budgetesmees were revised mainly due to changes in tax
information contained in the Certificate of EstiediResources.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS ADMINISTRA TION
Capital Assets

At June 30, 2013, the District had net capital @sssethe amount of $34,281,960 invested in land,
buildings and improvements, furniture and equipmantl vehicles. As mentioned earlier in this
discussion, an addition/renovation project was deteg at Crim Elementary. Little else was pureldas
as the District worked to conserve resources. Atingly, net capital assets increased only $296,045.
The District owns no infrastructure. The followitaple presents comparative balances for fiscakyea
2013 and 2012:

Total

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities Total Total Increase
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 (Decrease)
Land $ 279,264 $ 279,264 $ - $ - $ 279,264 $ 279,264 $
Constructionin Progress - 3114,1%4 - - - 3,114,194 (3114,19%)
Buildngs & Improvements 44,797,489 39911,914 - - 44,797,489 39,911,914 4885,575
Fumiture & Equipment 4,191,458 4,168,224 335,798 320,658 4,527,256 4,488,882 38,374
Vehicles 2,042,292 2042292 20,102 20,102 2,062,394 2,062,3%
Accumulated depreciation (17,028,543 (15528,368) (269,811) (256,276) (17,298,354) (15,784,644) (1513,710)
Net Capital Assets $ 34,281,960 $ 33987,520 $ 86,089 $ 84,434 $ 34,368,049 $ 34,072,004 $ 296,045

Long-term Obligations

At June 30, 2013, the District’s governmental atig had long-term liabilities totaling $29,542008
The District issued general obligation bonds in200the amount of $27,500,000 for the constructibn
the middle school facility and a permanent improgatrievy tax anticipation note (TAN) in the amount
of $1,250,000 for the Crim Elementary addition/nesitton project in 2012. Outstanding general

-7 -



BOWLING GREEN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Unalysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

obligation bonds amount to $25,140,000 with $408,80e within one year, and unamortized bond
premium of $1,140,698. The outstanding TAN is $983@,with $312,500 due within one year. The
remaining long-term obligations consist of probgidgments for compensated absences in the amount of
$2,324,782. These probable payments have decr$d68210 since June 30, 2012 as many more long-
time employees have retired.

Under current state statutes, the District's detiés are subject to a legal limitation of 9% efttital
assessed value of real and personal propertyurfg 30, 2013, the District’'s outstanding debt wakiw
the legal limit.

ECONOMIC FACTORS

While economists have opined that the recessitmsrcountry is over, growth in property tax revesu
will lag because property revaluations are perfateeery six years with an update every three years.
Wood County’s last reappraisal was in 2011 witHenhial update scheduled for 2014. Property tax
revenue is affected by foreclosures and appealsttuced property values. Multiple property owriars
the District with high value property have filedpsals and have been granted reductions in property
values. This results in lower property tax coli@as for the District. Interest rates dropped tarmeero
and still hover there resulting in little fundingin interest revenues. A sign of economic recoisethat
school district income tax revenues rose 7.8% @2¥PL4 from fiscal year 2012 to fiscal year 201& t
third year in a row.

Significant changes were implemented in the taxcstire by the Ohio General Assembly beginning in
fiscal year 2006. Effective January 1, 2006, HBpB&sed out tangible personal property tax oveua f
year period with 2009 being the final year. Thies@s had comprised approximately 10% of the
District's revenues. HB 66 provided for “hold haass” payments to replace these revenues through
2010 at which time these payments were schedulbd phased out. HB 1 passed in 2009 retained the
full amount of these payments through 2013 althahghhold harmless” payments would be in
declining amounts to reflect the phase-out of tiventory portion of tangible personal property thast
already in law prior to the passage of HB 66. Hi3,lthe State’s biennial budget for fiscal year28hd
2013 reduced the “hold harmless” payments up tafehe District’s total revenues for each of th@tw
years as discussed previously in the Financial ysigbkection of this narrative.

State foundation funding had remained flat for gdar Bowling Green City School District. Assessed
local property values factor into this funding. cAase property values in the District had increased
the years, the foundation formula assumed thatgstppaxes also increased thereby reducing the
District’s need for state funding. However, ascdssed in the Financial Analysis section of this
narrative, property taxes do not actually grow viiittreased property values. Prior to 2006, therits
had been on the “fiscal year 1998 guarantee” tedbundation funding. This meant the Distriad ha
been guaranteed to receive the same amount ofrfyiadi it did seven years prior even though, based
upon property values, state funding should be Bagmitly less than received in fiscal year 1998/ith

the passage of the budget bills for fiscal yea@6atirough 2009, the District went on the Trangiilo
Aid Guarantee, which essentially equated to thexdi year 1998 guarantee” because the Transithadal
Guarantee ensured that the District would receilwatt did in fiscal year 2005 — which was the same
that it did in fiscal year 1998. A portion of tHmundation funding was replaced with State Fiscal
Stabilization Funds (SFSF) from the American Recpaad Reinvestment Act in fiscal years 2010 and
2011. When those SFSF funds were gone, the foumifatnding was not reinstated to pre-2010 levels.
The State of Ohio has not had a funding formulalate for public schools during the 2012-2013
biennium. Instead, a “bridge” formula was a trdosal approach being used for school districte Th
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BOWLING GREEN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT

Management’s Discussion and Unalysis
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

details of this approach are described on the Okjmartment of Education’s website on the
Finance/State Funding for Schools page.

As a result of these unstable funding sourcesDibgict is continually forced to seek additionakes
from its citizens to compensate for declining raxeenThe District had two tax levies on the batloting
fiscal year 2013 which were soundly defeated. €quently, it was necessary to take steps to
compensate for the lack of additional funding.rdaponse, all employees accepted a total pay ffeeze
fiscal year 2014 as well as increased share ofthi#urance premiums of up to 15%. Teaching staff
gave up vision coverage benefits altogether angeabto a salary schedule for the future with fewer
possibilities for advancement from educational growAll employees also agreed to reductions in
severance benefits. The District implemented dblieiget cuts where feasible and purchases of
equipment, such as busses, were delayed to corfsed& Another elementary building will be closed
the end of fiscal year 2013 resulting in severaitpans being eliminated or reduced. These androth
changes for fiscal year 2014 allow the Districtleday a return to the voters for new tax levies.

Several court decisions have been issued as & oéshé school funding cases filed against theeSta
The Supreme Court relinquished jurisdiction over¢hse in late 2002 and directed the Ohio General
Assembly to enact a school-funding scheme thdwaough and efficient. It is unknown what effatt,
any, this decision will have on future funding District receives from the State. However, as diesd
earlier in this presentation, this District rellesavily upon local funding.

The Board of Education and the Administration @& Bowling Green City School District have
committed themselves to providing a sound educakiprogram for the citizens of the District while
maintaining fiscal integrity. Accordingly, fadikes, programs and operational practices have aeén
will continue to be under constant review to deiemwhat, if any, changes are needed. Of noteesin
fiscal year 2005, the District has closed thregso$ix elementary buildings as of June 30, 204.3. |
conjunction with these closures, the number of st@&mbers has been reduced.

Contacting the District’'s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide otizeins, taxpayers, investors and creditors witkerzegal
overview of the District’s finances and to demoatsrthe District’s accountability for the money it
receives. Inquiries about this report may be d&@to Rhonda Melchi, Treasurer, Bowling Green City
School District, 137 Clough Street, Bowling Gre&jo 43402.



Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in segregated accounts
Investments
Receivables
Property taxes - current
Property taxes - delinquent
School district income tax
Accounts
Accrued interest
Intergovernmental
Materials & supplies inventory
Prepaid items
Nondepreciable capital assets
Depreciable capital assets, net
Total assets

Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Intergovernmental payables
Accrued interest payable
Long-term liabilities
Due within one year
Due in more than one year
Totd liabilities

Deferred inflow of resources:

Property taxes levied for the next fiscal year

Intergovernmental revenue received
for the next fiscal year
Total deferred inflows of resources

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt service
Capital projects
Other purposes
Unrestricted/undesignated
Total net position

Bowling Green City School District, Wood County

Statement of Net Position
As of June 30, 2013

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ 4,491,075 $ 350,650 4,841,725
4,000 - 4,000
3,016,517 - 3,016,517
17,311,407 - 17,311,407
283,852 - 283,852
1,154,575 - 1,154,575
70,680 3,520 74,200
5,955 - 5,955
56,970 - 56,970
77,300 31,760 109,060
133,861 2,544 136,405
279,264 - 279,264
34,002,696 86,089 34,088,785
60,888,152 474,563 61,362,715
241,753 189 241,942
2,158,858 38,758 2,197,616
364,404 44,895 409,299
102,102 - 102,102
1,079,860 - 1,079,860
28,463,120 71,288 28,534,408
32,410,097 155,130 32,565,227
13,734,237 - 13,734,237
3,076 - 3,076
13,737,313 - 13,737,313
7,063,761 86,089 7,149,850
818,368 - 818,368
913,637 - 913,637
546,522 - 546,522
5,398,454 233,344 5,631,798
$ 14,740,742 $ 319,433 15,060,175

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Bowling Green City School District, Wood County
Statement of Activities
For the Fiscal Y ear Ended June 30, 2013

Net (Expense) Revenue

Program Revenues and Changesin Net Position
Charges for Operating Grants Governmental Business-Type
Expenses Services and Sales and Contributions Activities Activities Tota
Governmental activities
Instruction $ 19,777,954 $ 412,173 $ 749,626 $ (18,616,155) $ - $  (18,616,155)
Support services 11,583,074 92,838 632,039 (10,858,197) - (10,858,197)
Non-instructional 580,899 - 458,109 (122,790) - (122,790)
Extracurricular activities 938,530 329,058 - (609,472) - (609,472)
Interest and fiscal charges 1,171,045 - - (1,171,045) - (1,171,045)
Miscellaneous 1,468 - - (1,468) - (1,468)
Total governmental activities 34,052,970 834,069 1,839,774 (31,379,127) - (31,379,127)
Business-type activities
Food service 1,168,370 572,916 655,601 - 60,147 60,147
Performing Arts Center operations 44,551 5,965 - - (38,586) (38,586)
Total business-type activities 1,212,921 578,881 655,601 - 21,561 21,561
Totals 35,265,891 1,412,950 2,495,375 (31,379,127) 21,561 (31,357,566)
General Revenues
Property taxes levied for:
General purposes 16,861,403 - 16,861,403
Debt service 1,368,943 - 1,368,943
Capital outlay 495,458 - 495,458
Income taxes levied for general purposes 3,060,887 - 3,060,887
Grants & entitlements not restricted to specific programs 9,884,330 - 9,884,330
Payment in lieu of taxes 822 - 822
Investment earnings 33,640 27 33,667
Miscellaneous 121,354 1,577 122,931
Total general revenues 31,826,837 1,604 31,828,441
Transfers (40,000) 40,000 -
Changein net position 407,710 63,165 470,875
Net position beginning of year (restated) 14,333,032 256,268 14,589,300
Net position end of year $ 14,740,742 $ 319,433 $ 15,060,175

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Bowling Green City School District, Wood County

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
As of June 30, 2013

Assets.
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash in segregated accounts
Investments
Receivables:
Property taxes
School district income taxes
Accounts
Intergovernmental
Accrued interest
Materias and supplies inventory
Prepaid items

Total assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and benefits

Compensated absences payable

Intergovernmental payable
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resour ces:

Property taxes levied for next fiscal year
Delingquent property tax revenue

not available

Accrued interest not available

Intergovernmental revenue

received for next fiscal year
Total deferred inflows of resour ces

Fund balances:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances

Totd liabilities, deferred inflows of resources

and fund balances

Other Tota
Governmental Governmental

Generd Funds Funds
$ 2,959,614 $ 1,531,461 4,491,075
4,000 - 4,000
2,923,517 93,000 3,016,517
15,737,548 1,857,711 17,595,259
1,154,575 - 1,154,575
68,885 1,795 70,680
- 56,970 56,970
8,772 278 9,050
77,300 - 77,300
133,492 369 133,861
$ 23,067,703 $ 3,541,584 26,609,287
$ 211,680 $ 30,073 241,753
2,121,382 37,476 2,158,858
91,260 - 91,260
327,308 37,096 364,404
2,751,630 104,645 2,856,275
12,286,420 1,447,817 13,734,237
255,019 28,833 283,852
3,095 - 3,095
- 3,076 3,076
12,544,534 1,479,726 14,024,260
210,792 63,816 274,608
- 1,891,223 1,891,223
442,689 2,174 444,863
2,856,696 - 2,856,696
4,261,362 - 4,261,362
7,771,539 1,957,213 9,728,752
$ 23,067,703 $ 3,541,584 26,609,287

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances
to Net Position of Governmental Activities
As of June 30, 2013

Total Governmental Fund Balances

Amounts reported for governmental activitiesin the
statement of net position are different because

Delinquent property taxes are not available to pay for current
period expenditures, and are, therefore, deferred in the funds

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
resources and therefore are not reported in the funds

Long-term liabilities, including notes and bonds payable, are not
due and payable in the current period and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds

Net Position of Governmental Activities
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$ 9728752
283,852
34,281,960
(29,553,822)

$ 14,740,742




Bowling Green City School District, Wood County
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changesin Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds
For the Fiscal Y ear Ended June 30, 2013

Revenues:
Taxes
School district income taxes
Tuition and fees
Intergovernmental
Interest
Extracurricular activities
Gifts and donations
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total Revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction
Support services
Non-instructional services
Extracurricular activities
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal
Interest
Total expenditures
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures
Other financing sour ces (uses)
Operating transfers (out)
Other financing sources
Other financing (uses)
Total other financing sour ces (uses)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expenditures and other uses

Fund balance July 1

Fund balance June 30

Other Tota
Governmental Governmental

Generd Funds Funds
$ 16,868,582 $ 1864401 $ 18,732,983
3,060,887 - 3,060,887
429,065 - 429,065
9,929,352 1,794,752 11,724,104
31,342 2,298 33,640
45,585 236,572 282,157
- 6,265 6,265
4,925 - 4,925
89,271 42,375 131,646
30,459,009 3,946,663 34,405,672
18,448,225 534,301 18,982,526
10,604,059 663,982 11,268,041
132,361 460,459 592,820
653,428 244,634 898,062
- 1,817,367 1,817,367
- 677,500 677,500
- 1,225,817 1,225,817
29,838,073 5,624,060 35,462,133
620,936 (1,677,397) (1,056,461)
(40,000) - (40,000)
77,566 10,263 87,829
(249) (1,444) (1,468)
37,542 8,819 46,361
658,478 (1,668,578) (1,010,100)
7,113,061 3,625,791 10,738,852
$ 7,771,539 $ 1957213 $ 9,728,752

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changesin Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

to the Statement of Activities

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

Net Changein Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement
of activities are different because

Certain property taxes reported on the statement of activities do not provide current
financial resources so are not reported as revenue in governmental funds

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets

(i.e., purchases, sales, disposals, trade-ins, and donations) is to increase net position.

Repayment of bond and note principa is an expenditure in the governmental
funds, but the repayment reduces long-term liabilitiesin the statement of net
position and does not result in an expense in the statement of activities.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities, such as
compensated absences payable and amortization of bond premiums,
do not require the use of current financia resources and therefore

are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

Changein Net Position of Governmental Activities
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$ (1,010,100)

7,179

294,440

677,500

438,691

R



Bowling Green City School District, Wood County

Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
As of June 30, 2013

Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables (net of allowances
for uncollectibles)

Accounts

Materials and supplies inventory
Prepaid items

Total current assets

Capital assets, net
Total assets

Liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Intergovernmental payable
Compensated absences payable
Total liabilities

Net position
Invested in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

Business-Type
Activities -
Enterprise Funds

$ 350,650

3,520
31,760
2,544

388,474

86,089

474,563

189
38,758
44,895
71,288

155,130

86,089
233,344

$ 319,433

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Bowling Green City School District, Wood County
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
Proprietary Funds
For the Y ear Ended June 30, 2013

Business-Type
Activities-
Enterprise Fund

Operating revenues:

Sales $ 572,916
Other operating revenues 5,965
Total operating revenues 578,881
Operating expenses:
Salaries and wages 425,411
Fringe benefits 178,019
Purchased services 9,106
Materials and supplies 445,685
Cost of sales 136,981
Depreciation 13,535
Other operating expenses 3,968
Total operating expenses 1,212,705
Operating income (l0ss) (633,824)

Nonoper ating r evenues (expenses):

Interest revenue 27
Other nonoperating revenue 1,577
Federal and state subsidies 518,620
Federa donated commodities 136,981
Other nonoperating expense (216)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 656,989
Change in net position before transfers 23,165
Operating transfers-in 40,000
Change in net position 63,165
Net position at July 1 256,268
Net position at June 30 $ 319,433

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Bowling Green City School District, Wood County
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Y ear Ended June 30, 2013

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from sales
Cash received from other revenues
Cash payments for employee services
Cash payments for employee benefits
Cash payments for contract services
Cash payments for supplies and materials
Cash payments for other expenses
Net cash provided by (used for) operating
activities
Cash flows from noncapital financing activitiesL
Federal and state subsidies
Operating transfersin
Other non-operating income
Other non-operating expense
Net cash provided by noncapital
financing activities
Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest on investments
Net cash provided by investing activities
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition/Disposition of capital assets
Net cash used for capital and related
financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Reconciliation of operating income to net
cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Operating income (10ss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating |0ss to net
cash provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation
Other adjustments to non-operating income
Other adjustments to non-operating income
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Materials and Supplies inventory
Receivables
Prepayments
Accounts payable
Accrued wages and benefits
Compensated absences payable
Intergovernmental payable

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Business-Type
Activities-
Enterprise Funds

$ 572,916
3,765

(416,865)

(181,155)

(8,917)

(450,175)

(5,907)

(486,338)

518,620
40,000

257
(216)

558,661

27

27

(15,140)

(15,140)

57,210

293,440

$ 350,650

$ (633,824)

13,535

136,981

(4,490)
(2,200)
(1,939)

189
2,104
6,192
(2,886)

$ (486,338)




Bowling Green City School District, Wood County
Statement of Net Position
Fiduciary Fund
As of June 30, 2013

Agency

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 92,888
Total assets 92,888
Liabilities:

Due to students 89,068

Other current liabilities 3,820
Total liabilities 92,888
Net position $ -

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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BOWLING GREEN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
WOOD COUNTY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 1- DESCRIPTION OF THE SCHOOL DISTRICT

Bowling Green City School District (the Distric & body politic and corporate established foptilgose of
exercising the rights and privileges conveyed twyithe constitution and laws of the State of Ohite District is a
city district as defined by Section 3311.02, Oh&vRed Code. The District operates under an eldtte member
Board of Education and is responsible for provisibpublic education to residents of the Distrigthe District is
located in Wood County in northwest Ohio. Its bdares include all of the City of Bowling Green guattions of
surrounding townships.

The District serves 3,125 students and encompassarea of approximately one hundred fifty squaitesn The
District regularly employs 212 licensed/certifichtemployees and 106 non-certificated/licensed eyagl®. In
addition, the District employed substitute empl®y/gecover the duties of absent bus drivers wiilgraecting with
an employment service for all other substitute eyges and certain paraprofessionals.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the District have bgespared in conformity with accounting principlengrally
accepted in the United States (GAAP) as applieggbteernmental units. The Governmental Accountiran8ards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting fodgstablishing governmental accounting and fifnglnc
reporting principles. The District's significarcaunting policies are described below.

A. The Reporting Entity

The District's reporting entity has been defineddoordance with Governmental Accounting StandBaisd
(GASB) Statement No. 14, The Financial Reportingitas amended by GASB Statement No. 39 determining
whether certain organizations are component uniis@ASB Statement No. 61 The Financial Reportintit¥En
Omnibus an Amendment of GASB Statements No. 14NimdB4 The financial statements of the reporting entity
include those of the District (the primary govermt)e The District has no component units. Théofeing
organizations are described due to their relatipnshthe District.

Jointly Governed Organization:

Penta Career Center: an Ohio Vocational Schootibist

The Penta Career Center is a separate body patiticorporate, established by the Ohio Revised QORE) to
provide vocational and special education neediestudents. The school accepts non-tuition stadssm the
District as a member school, however, it is congide separate political subdivision and is nositered to be
part of the District. One member of the Bowlinge&n City Board of Education serves as a membédreoPenta
Career Center Board of Education.

The District also participates in two insuranceugr@urchasing pools, described in Note 11.

Non-public _Schools

Non-public schools located within the District bdanies include: St. Aloysius and St. Louis Elemsn&chools,
the Montessori School of Bowling Green, Bowling &reChristian Academy and Plan, Do and Talk Primdtyese
non-public schools are operated independentlyeftistrict. The District receives and disburseslaury services
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BOWLING GREEN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
WOOD COUNTY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE®Continued)
A. The Reporting Entity (Continued)

money from the State for support of these non-puiihools as directed by these non-public schobie receipt
and expenditure of these auxiliary services moaiesaccounted for by the District and are refleateal Special
Revenue Fund for financial reporting purposes theitnon-public schools’ operations are not reflédtethe
accompanying financial statements.

B. Fund Accounting

The District uses funds to report its financiasition and the results of its operations. A fusdiseparate
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of asts. Fund accounting is designed to demonstegt |
compliance and to aid financial management by gggireg transactions related to certain school idistictivities or
functions. Funds are classified into three categorGovernmental, Proprietary and Fiduciary. Heeategory is
divided into separate fund types.

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Governmental Funds are those through which mosgrgmental functions of the District are financéthe
acquisition, use and balances of the District'sagjable financial resources and the related ltasl{except those
accounted for in Proprietary Funds) are accourdgethfough Governmental Funds. The measuremeusfiscupon
determination of “financial flow” (sources, usegldralances of financial resources). The followisthe District's
major Governmental Fund:

General Fund The General Fund is the general operating fdrileoDistrict and is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to bewted for in another fund. The General Fund lzgas
available to the District for any purpose providieid expended or transferred according to the geh@ws of
Ohio.

The other governmental funds of the District ac¢dangrants and other resources, debt servicecapdal projects
of the District whose uses are restricted to ai@ddr purpose.

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Proprietary Funds are accounted for on an “econoasicurces” measurement focus. This measuremeun fo
provides that all assets and all liabilities asstad with the operation of the Proprietary Fundsiacluded on the
balance sheet. The proprietary fund operatingrsiatés present increases (i.e. revenues) and desréas
expenses) in net position. The following are th&ttizt's Proprietary Funds:

Enterprise Funds The Enterprise Funds are used to account faratipas (a) that are financed and operated in a
manner similar to private business enterprises+avtiee intent of the governing body is that thets¢expenses,
including depreciation) of providing goods or sees to the general public on a continuing basisnaeaced or
recovered primarily through user charges; or (b@nhthe governing body has decided that periodiergenation

of revenues earned, expenses incurred, and/onecahi is appropriate for capital maintenance, pyiiicy,
management control, accountability, or other puegosThe District’'s enterprise funds account fefdod service
operation and its Performing Arts Center operations
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BOWLING GREEN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
WOOD COUNTY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE®Continued)
B. Fund Accounting (Continued)
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Fiduciary fund reporting focuses on net positiod ahanges in net position. The District’'s onlyiry Funds are
Agency Funds that are custodial in nature (assptaldiabilities) and do not involve the measuretredresults of
operations. The District's Agency Funds accounstadent activities and other similar activities.

C. Basis of Presentation and Measurement Focus — ¢taléBtatements
Government-wide Financial Statements

The statement of net position and the statemeattdfities display information about the District @ whole. These
statements include the financial activities of firanary government, except for Fiduciary Funds.e Bfatements
distinguish between those activities of the Distiiiat are governmental and those that are corsidausiness-type
activities.

The government-wide statements are prepared ustngdonomic resources measurement focus. This same
approach used in the preparation of the propridtarg financial statements but differs from the mamin which
Governmental Fund financial statements are prepaBaernmental Fund financial statements therefurieide a
reconciliation with brief explanations to betteeidify the relationship between the government-vgid@ements and
the statements for Governmental Funds.

The government-wide statement of activities presdirect expenses and program revenues for eaotesegf the
business-type activities of the District and foctedunction or program of the District's governnmegdrdctivities.
Direct expenses are those that are specificallycést®d with a service, program or department hetefore clearly
identifiable to a particular function. Programeeues include charges paid by the recipient oftuels or services
offered by the program and grants and contributtbatare restricted to meeting the operationaampital
requirements of a particular program. Revenuestwaie not classified as program revenues areigszsas
general revenues of the District, with certain tediexceptions. The comparison of direct expewndhsprogram
revenues identifies the extent to which each bgsisegment or governmental function is self-finag@r draws
from the general revenues of the District.

Fund Financial Statements

Fund financial statements report detailed infororatibout the District. The focus of Governmenteal Enterprise
Fund financial statements is on major funds ratiha&n reporting funds by type. The major fund isgented in a
separate column. Nonmajor funds are aggregategm@seénted in a single column. The Enterprise famds
presented in a single column on the face of thenetary fund statements. Fiduciary funds are rgubby fund

type.

The accounting and financial reporting treatmemliagd to a fund is determined by its measuremezugo All
Governmental Funds are accounted for using a fiosunent financial resources measurement focuee fihancial
statements for Governmental Funds are a balaneg, stigich generally includes only current assets@mnrent
liabilities plus deferred inflows, and a statemefitevenues, expenditures and changes in fund tedamhich
reports on the sources (i.e., revenues and oth@nding sources) and uses (i.e., expenditures thed financing
uses) of current financial resources.
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BOWLING GREEN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
WOOD COUNTY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE (Continued)
C. Basis of Presentation and Measurement Focus— RatéBtatements (Continued)

All Proprietary funds are accounted for on a floweconomic resources measurement focus. Withtk&surement
focus, all assets and all liabilities associateith Wie operations of these funds are included ersthtement of net
position. The statement of changes in fund neitipagresents increases (revenues) and decreagasnses) in net
position. The statement of cash flows providesriméation about how the District finances and méstscash flow
needs of its proprietary activities.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenuebexpenses from nonoperating items. Operatingiesand
expenses generally result from providing serviges@oducing and delivering goods in connectior\ait
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operation. €Tfrincipal operating revenues of the District'tegprise funds
are charges for sales and services. Operating sgpdor enterprise funds include the cost of satelsservices. All
revenues and expenses not meeting this definitemegported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Agency funds do not report a measurement focuseasdo not report operations.
D. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting represents the methodologizetilin the recognition of revenues and expenditoreexpenses
reported in the financial statements. The accagrdnd reporting treatment applied to a fund igwheined by its
measurement focus.

Government-wide, proprietary and fiduciary fundaficial statements measure and report all assatdities,
revenues, expenses, gains and losses using themgicaresources measurement focus and accrual dfasis
accounting. Revenues are recorded when earneelxpeases are recorded when a liability is incumregardless of
the timing of related cash flows. Taxes are recghas revenues in the year for which they ariedevGrants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soal eligibility requirements imposed by the provideve been
met.

The modified accrual basis of accounting is fokboMby the Governmental Funds. Under the modifeedual basis
of accounting, revenues are recognized when thegrbe both measurable and available to finance ekpeas of
the current period. "Measurable" means the amoiuthiectransaction can be determined while "avadabteans
collectible within the current fiscal year or scamough thereafter to be used to pay liabilitiethefcurrent fiscal
year. The available period for the District istgigays after the June 30 year-end.

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept utite modified accrual basis, the following revesoerces are
deemed both measurable and available: intereggrtustudent fees, property taxes available sadmance and
income taxes.

Nonexchange transactions, in which the Districeiess value without directly giving equal valuer@turn, include
property taxes, grants, entittements and donati®nshe modified accrual basis, revenue from priypgaxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxeslavied and the resources are available. Revieaoegrants,
entitlements and donations is recognized in theafigear in which all eligibility requirements halveen met and the
resources are available.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE®Continued)
D. Basis of Accounting (Continued)

The District reports deferred inflows of resouroests balance sheet. Deferred inflows of resaisrése when a
potential revenue does not meet both the measuaabl@vailable criteria for recognition in the amtrperiod. In
the subsequent period, when both revenue recogrtiteria are met, the deferred inflow of resosriseremoved
from the combined balance sheet and revenue ignétad. Property taxes measurable as of June03a@, dut
which were levied to finance fiscal year 2014 ofiers, have been recorded as deferred inflowssufurces.

On the governmental fund financial statements,ivabdées that will not be collected within the awedile period,
including delinquent property taxes due at June&28@3, have also been reported as deferred infioesources.

The measurement focus of governmental fund acaogiigion decreases in net financial resources (elpees)
rather than expenses. Expenditures are generathgnézed in the accounting period in which thetesdlgund
liability is incurred, if measurable. Allocation$ @ost, such as depreciation and amortizationnateecognized in
governmental funds.

The accrual basis of accounting is utilized foraripg purposes by the government-wide financialeshents,
Proprietary Funds and the Fiduciary Funds. Unlderatcrual basis of accounting, revenues are regyavhen
earned and expenses are recognized when theycaredd. The fair value of donated commodities whathg the
year is reported in the operating statement axpense with a like amount reported as donated catiti@s
revenue.

On the accrual basis of accounting, revenue fronerchange transactions, such as grants, entitlsraedt
donations, is recognized in the fiscal year in Wradl eligibility requirements have been met. Gsaneceived
before eligibility requirements are met are recdréde deferred inflows on the governmental fundrfaial
statements. The Proprietary Funds receive no tevéfom property taxes.

E. Budgets

The District is required by state statute to adgopannual appropriated cash basis budget fouradls (except
agency) while GASB requires only the general andraajor special revenue funds to be reported in the
supplementary schedules presenting budgetary isfitom The specific timetable for fiscal year 204 as follows:

1. Pursuant to Section 5705.281, ORC, the Wood CdaBuatget Commission has waived the requirement for
school districts to adopt a tax budget. In plaicéhe tax budget, the District must submit an eatarof
revenues for the fiscal year commencing the folfmaduly 1 for all funds by no later than January®the
preceding fiscal year.

2. Prior to April 1, the Board of Education acceptgfdrmal resolution, the tax rates as determinethby
Budget Commission and receives the Commission'fiCate of Estimated Resources which states the
projected revenue of each fund. Prior to Juhh&,District must prepare a budget in which total
contemplated expenditures from any fund duringetheuing year will not exceed the amount stateten t
Certificate of Estimated Resources. This budget gerves as a basis for the appropriation meagimeor
about July 1, the Certificate is amended to incladg unencumbered balances from the precedingagear
reported by the District Treasurer. The Certificatay be further amended during the year if prepbct
increases or decreases in revenue are identifidkleblistrict Treasurer. The amounts reportedhén t
budgetary schedule reflect the amounts set forthamPAmended Official Certificate of Estimated Res®s
and the final Amended Certificate issued for fisgdr 2013.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE®Continued)
E. Budgets (Continued)

3. By July 1, the annual appropriation resolutioreigdlly enacted by the Board of Education. Whike th
District uses an expenditure account coding systmsisting of a minimum of fund number, a four digi
function, and a three digit object, the Board addmppropriation is at the fund and first digifurfiction
level of expenditures for the General Fund andhafitind level for all other district funds. These a
considered the legal levels of budgetary contAaministrative control is maintained through the
establishment of more detailed line-item budgé8tate statute permits a temporary appropriatidreto
effective until no later than October 1 of eachrye&esolution appropriations by fund must be initihe
estimated resources as certified by the County Bu@gmmission and the total of expenditures and
encumbrances may not exceed the appropriatiorstotal

4. Any revisions that alter the total of any fund aggiation or alter first digit function appropriatis within
the General Fund must be approved by the Boardlo€&ion.

5. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a mamagt control device during the year for all funds
consistent with the general obligation bond indemaind other statutory provisions.

All departments/functions and funds completed tar within the amount of their legally authorizedie
basis appropriation.

6. Appropriation amounts are as originally adopteca®amended by the Board of Education throughehe y
by supplemental appropriations which either realled or increased the original appropriated amounts
All supplemental appropriations were legally enddig the Board during fiscal year 2013.

7. Unencumbered appropriations lapse at year-endurfiinered appropriations are carried forward to the
succeeding fiscal year and need not be re-apptedricExpenditures plus encumbrances may not jegall
exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund, figst fiinction level for the General fund and thaduevel
for all other funds.

Encumbrance accounting is utilized with Districadis in the normal course of operations, for purehas
orders and contract-related expenditures. An ebcante is a reserve on the available spending atytho
due to commitment for a future expenditure and dmggepresent a liability. For Governmental Fynds
encumbrances outstanding at year-end appear asraitnent or assignment of the fund balance on the
balance sheet and as the equivalent of expendibmrasnon-GAAP budgetary basis in order to dematestr
legal compliance.

F. Cash and Investments

Cash received by the District is deposited in dreébank account with individual fund balance grity
maintained. Monies for all funds are maintainethis account or temporarily used to purchase gieom cash
equivalent investments (maturity date within thneenths of the date acquired by the District) wrdch stated at
cost. State statutes authorize the District teghin obligations of the U.S. Treasury, commerngader and
repurchase agreements. Under existing Ohio statallénvestment earnings are credited to the @Ggfeind
except those specified according to Board Resalutitnterest earnings are allocated to these fbaded on
average monthly cash balances. Interest revemgited to the General fund during fiscal year 28t®unted to
$31,342 while interest in the amount of $2,325 eraslited to other District funds.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE®Continued)
F. Cash and Investments (Continued)

Except for nonparticipating investment contraatsestments are reported at fair value which is dhasequoted
market prices. Nonparticipating investment corigatich as repurchase agreements and nonnegatibficates
of deposit are reported at cost. Money marketdtmaents are short-term, highly liquid debt instratséncluding
commercial paper, banker’'s acceptances and U.&sling and agency obligations.

The District has invested funds in the State Trga8sset Reserve of Ohio (STAR Ohio) during fisgaar 2013.
STAR Ohio is an investment pool managed by theeSkatasurer’s Office which allows governments witthie
State to pool their funds for investment purpos8FAR Ohio is not registered with the SEC as ae$tment
company, but does operate in a manner consistémRuie 2a7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940.
Investments in STAR Ohio are valued at STAR Ohéliare price which is the price the investment chaldold
for on June 30, 2013.

For purposes of presentation in the basic finarst@kements, investments of the cash managemehapdo
investments with original maturities of three manth less at the time of purchase by the Distrietcansidered to
be cash equivalents. Investments with an initialurity of more than three months are reportechasstments.

An analysis of the District's investment accoungesr end is provided in Note 5.
G. Inventory

Inventories for all Governmental Funds are valuecbat (first-in/first out method). The purchasethod is used to
account for inventories. Under the purchase metimventories are recorded as expenditures whechpsed;
however, material amounts of inventories at pegad-are reported as assets of the respective idnich are
equally offset by a fund balance classificatiomohspendable which indicates they are unavailalagpropriation
even though they are a component of reported assets

Inventories of Proprietary Funds are valued atdiager of cost (first-in/first-out method) or faialue and expensed
when used rather than when purchased.

H. Prepaids

Prepayments for Governmental Funds represent dslstirdements that have occurred and are therefreurrent
expendable resources. These items are reporfedaassets on the balance sheet using the athocauthod,
which amortizes their cost over the periods beingfitrom the advance payment. At period-end, bseau
prepayment is not available to finance future Gorm@ntal Fund expenditures, an amount equal toghging
value of the asset is classified as nonspendaltleifund balance.

I. Capital Assets and Depreciation

Property, Plant and Equipment — Governmental Al

Capital assets are acquired or constructed forrgavental activities and are recorded as expenditaréhe
Governmental Funds and are capitalized at cosigimated historical cost for assets not purchasegcent years).
These assets are reported in the Government-waderS¢nt of Net Position, but they are not repoinetie Fund
Financial Statements. The District follows theippbf not capitalizing assets with a cost of ldgmn $3,000 and a
useful life of less than five years.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE®Continued)
I. Capital Assets and Depreciation (Continued)
Donated capital assets are recorded at fair valthealate received. The District does not posaegs

infrastructure. Estimated historical costs of talpassets were derived, when information suppgttistorical costs
was not obtainable, by an appraisal company whoiales in this area.

Depreciation

All capital assets, except for land, are deprediat@epreciation has been provided, where appreprian a straight-
line basis over the following estimated useful $ive

Asset Life (years)
Buildings and Improvements 20-50
Furniture, Fixtures and Minor Equipment ®-2
Vehicles 5-10

J. Intergovernmental Revenues

In Governmental Funds, entitlements and non-reisdhle grants (to the extent such grants and enétiés relate
to the current fiscal year) are recorded as rebégaand revenue when measurable and availablmbResement
type grants are recorded as receivables and resevhen the related expenditures are incurred. &fant
Proprietary Fund operations are recognized as tevemen measurable and earned.

K. Compensated Absences

Compensated absences of the District consist @tiacleave and sick leave to the extent that payaethe
employee for these absences is attributable tacemsralready rendered and is not contingent oreeifipevent that
is outside the control of the District and the emygpk.

In accordance with the provisions of Statement IMoof the Governmental Accounting Standards Board,
Accounting for Compensated Absencadiability for vacation leave is accrued if Agtemployees' rights to
payment are attributable to services already reattjemd b) it is probable that the employer wilingeensate the
employees for the benefits through paid timeoofbther means, such as cash payment at terminati@tiement.

A liability for severance is accrued using the westmethod; i.e., the liability is based on thekdeave accumulated
at the balance sheet date by those employees whruaently eligible to receive termination (seve®) payments,
as well as those employees expected to becomebleligithe future.

The total liability for vacation and sick leave pagnts has been calculated using pay rates in effébe balance
sheet date, and reduced to the maximum paymemtediby labor contract and/or statute, plus anyieable
additional salary related payments.

For Governmental Funds, that portion of unpaid censated absences expected to be paid using expendab
available resources is reported as an expendituteeifund from which the individual earning theve is paid, and
a corresponding liability is reflected in the acebtCompensated Absences Payable” on the balarem.sin the
Government-wide statement of net position, the mPensated Absences Payable” is recorded in the titn
one year” liability account with the long-term gort of accumulated absences recorded in the “Dueoire than
one year” liability account.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE®Continued)
L. Long-Term Obligations

For long-term obligations, only that portion expetto be financed from expendable available firerreisources is
reported as a fund liability of Governmental Funéisthe Government-wide statement of net positiba,current
portion of general obligation bonds and notes acerded in the “Due within one year” liability acod with the
long-term portion of these general obligation boadd notes recorded in the “Due in more than oag”"ymbility
account.

M. Fund Balance

Fund balance is divided into five classificatiomséd primarily on the extent to which the Distigschbound to
observe constraints imposed upon the use of tlreiress in the governmental funds. The classificatiare as
follows:

Nonspendable The nonspendable fund balance classificatioludies amounts that cannot be spent
because they are not in spendable form or legatjyired to be maintained intact. The “not in S del
form” criterion includes items that are not expede be converted to cash.

Restricted- Fund balance is reported as restricted whentizonts are placed on the use of resources that
are either externally imposed by creditors (sucthesugh debt covenants), grantors, contributartaw or
regulations of other governments, or imposed bytlaaugh constitutional provisions or enabling
legislation.

Committed- The committed fund balance classification inelsidmounts that can be used only for the
specific purposes imposed by a formal action (regmi) of the District Board of Education (the hégt
level of decision making authority). The commiteedounts cannot be used for any other purposedainles
the District Board of Education removes or chartgesspecified use by taking the same type of action
(resolution) it employed to previously commit th@maounts. Committed fund balance also incorporates
contractual obligations to the extent that existiagpurces in the fund have been specifically cdatachior
use in satisfying those contractual requirements.

Assigned- Amounts in the assigned fund balance classidinatre intended to be used by the District for
specific purposes but do not meet the criteriagtelassified as restricted nor committed. In gorental
funds other than the general fund, assigned futahba represents the remaining amount that is not
restricted or committed. In the general fund,gesil amounts represent intended uses established by
policies of the District Board of Education, whicltludes giving the Treasurer the authority to t@is
monies for intended purposes.

Unassigned- Unassigned fund balance is the residual classidin for the general fund and includes all
spendable amounts not contained in other clastdita In other governmental funds, the unassigned
classification is used only to report a deficitdumalance resulting from overspending for spegificposes
for which amounts have been restricted, committealssigned.

The District applies restricted resources first whésbursements are incurred for purposes for wigstricted and
unrestricted (committed, assigned and unassigued) halance is available. Similarly, within the estricted fund
balance, committed amounts are reduced first fabbtwy assigned, and then unassigned amounts when
disbursements are incurred for purposes for whicbumts in any of the unrestricted fund balancesdiaations
could be used.
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NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE®Continued)
N. Net Position

Net position represents the difference betweerntsasel liabilities plus deferred inflows of resaesc Net
investment in capital assets consists of capitdtasnet of accumulated depreciation, reducetidptitstanding
balances of any borrowings used for the acquisittonstruction or improvement of those assets. psition is
reported as restricted when there are limitatiomgoised on their use either through the enablinglign or
through external restrictions imposed by creditgrantors or laws or regulations of other governimeiNet
position restricted for other purposes includesueses restricted for public school support, distmanaged
activities and auxiliary services.

The District applies restricted resources first wha expense is incurred for purposes for which bestricted and
unrestricted net position is available.

O. Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, transastmecur between funds. The most significant inejud

1. Routine transfers of resources from one furahimther through which resources are to be expeaed
recorded as operating transfers.

2. Reimbursements from one fund to another astddeas an expenditure/expense in the reimbursimg) f
and a reduction of expenditure/ expense in thelreised fund.

3. Short-term interfund loans are reflected agfatg loans payable/receivable, while long-terneiifitnd
loans (greater than one year in length) are recbadeadvances to/from other funds.

Interfund operating transfers are eliminated onGl@ernment-wide statements.

P. Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymith generally accepted accounting principleguiees
management to make estimates and assumptiondfinzttthe amounts reported in the financial statesand
accompanying notes. Actual results may differ ftbiwse estimates.

Q. Unamortized Bond Premiums

Bond premiums are deferred and amortized overettm df the bonds using the straight line methodclvh
approximates the effective interest method. Bamuniums are presented as an addition to the faocartnof the
bonds.

NOTE 3 — CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES
For fiscal year 2013, the District has implemer@&SB Statement No. 63Ffnancial Reporting of Deferred

Outflows of Resources, Deferred Inflows of Resosyesmd Net Positidnand GASB Statement No. 65&ms
Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilfties

GASB Statement No. 63 provides financial and réporyuidance fodeferred outflows of resourcasddeferred
inflows of resourcewhich are financial statement elements that sseéndit from assets and liabilities. GASB
Statement No. 63 standardizes the presentatioefefréd outflows of resources and deferred infloiwesources
and their effects on a governmentist position.The implementation of this statement has changegtesentation
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NOTE 3 — CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES (Continued

of the District’s financial statements to incorpieréhe concepts of net position, deferred outflofusesources and
deferred inflows of resources.

GASB Statement No. 65 establishes accounting axadhdial reporting standards that reclassifyjeferred outflows
of resource®r deferred inflows of resourcesertain items that were previously reported astassel liabilities and
recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflowsesburces, certain items that were previously tepaas assets and
liabilities. GASB Statement No. 65 also providéisen financial reporting guidance related to theawt of the
financial statement elemerdsferred outflows of resourcasddeferred inflows of resources,ich as changes in the
determination of the major fund calculations amditing the use of the tergheferredin financial statement
presentations. The statement also requires bsodrnse costs to be expensed in the year of defaines. The
District formerly amortized bond issuance costsrdkie life of the related debt issuance and, tloeesfimust restate
beginning net position to account for this charmgthe accounting principle as follows:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities
Net position as previously reported $19,886 $ 256,268
Balance of unamortized bond issuance costs at3un2012 (236,494 -
Restated net position July 1, 2012 ,.$33.032 $ 256,268

NOTE 4 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A. Explanation of Certain Differences between tlw/&nmental Funds Balance Sheet and the Governiiels-
Statement of Net Position

The Governmental Funds balance sheet includes@nc#iation between fund balance — total Governialen
Funds and Net Position of Governmental Funds asrtegh in the government-wide statement of net jmosit
The following is a detailed listing of those reciing items that are net adjustments or a combamagif several
transactions:

Long-term liabilities not reported in the funds

Accrued Note Interest @.,953)
Accrued Bond Interest (100,149)
Notes Payable (937,500)
Bonds Payable (25,140,000)
Plus: issuance premium (to be
amortized as interest expense) (1,140,698)
Compensated absences (2,233,522)
$ (29,553,822)
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NOTE 4 - RECONCILIATION OF GOVERNMENT-WIDE AND FUN FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Continued)

B. Explanation of Certain Differences between the Gowental Fund Statement of Revenues, Expenditares,
Changes in Fund Balances and the Government-water8ént of Activities

The Governmental Fund statement of revenues, exXpeesl and changes in fund balances includes a
reconciliation between net changes in fund balardesal Governmental Funds and changes in netiposif
governmental activities as reported in the govemméde statement of activities. The followingaigletailed
listing of those reconciling items that are netuatihents or a combination of several transactions:

Amounts by which capital outlay exceeded assebdiép and depreciation in the current period:

Capital Outlay $ 1,794,615
Depreciation expense (1,500,175)
$ 294,440

The details of expenses that do not require theotisarrent financial resources:

Compensated absences $383,919

Accrued interest 1,716

Amortization of bond premium 53,056
$438,691

NOTE 5 — EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS
State statutes require the classification of mohédd by the District into three categories:

Active deposits are public deposits necessary &t g@rent demands on the treasury. Such monissguaw be
maintained either as cash in the District treasargpmmercial accounts payable or withdrawablel@emand,
including negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW) aoats, or in money market deposit accounts.

Inactive deposits are public deposits the BoarBdfcation has identified as not required for ugtiwithe current
five year period of designation of depositoriesadtive deposits must be evidenced by certificateposit
maturing not later than the end of the currentqubdf designation of depositories, or by savingdeposit accounts
including, but not limited to, passbook accounts.

Interim deposits are deposits of interim moniggerim monies are those monies which are not nefmted
immediate use but which will be needed before titead the current period of designation of depo®g Interim
monies must be evidenced by time certificates pbdit maturing not more than one year from the dateposit or
by savings accounts, including passbook accounts.

Protection of the District’'s deposits is providedtbe Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDb@)eligible
securities pledged by the financial institutiorsasurity for repayment, by surety company bond®siggd with the
treasurer by the financial institution or by a $ngollateral pool established by the financiatitngion to secure the
repayment of all public monies deposited with thetitution.
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NOTE 5 - EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Ctinued)

Interim monies are permitted to be deposited oested in the following securities:

1.

United States treasury notes, bills, bonds, orathgr obligation or security issued by the Unit¢at&s
treasury or any other obligation guaranteed asitwipal or interest by the United States;

Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligatosecurities issued by any federal government@gen
instrumentality, including but not limited to, tkederal National Mortgage Association, Federal Home
Loan Bank, Federal Farm Credit Bank, Federal HomenLMortgage Corporation, Government National
Mortgage Association, and Student Loan Marketingo&gation. All federal agency securities shall be
direct issuances of federal government agenci@strumentalities;

Written repurchase agreements in the securitiesdllisbove provided that the market value of thersies
subject to the repurchase agreement must exceguittogpal value of the agreement by at least two
percent and be marked to market daily, and thatetime of the agreement must not exceed thirty days;

Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio;

No-load money market mutual funds consisting exeélg of obligations described in division (1) &) (of
this section and repurchase agreements securadthyobligations, provided that investments in siiesr
described in this division are made only throudgilele institutions;

The State Treasurer’s investment pool (STAR Ohio);

Certain banker’s acceptances and commercial pages ffor a period not to exceed one hundred aridyeig
days in an amount not to exceed twenty-five peroétite interim monies available for investmenaay

one time; and

Under limited circumstances, corporate debt intsreted in either of the two highest rating clfisaiions
by at least two nationally recognized rating ages.Ci

Investments in stripped principal or interest odfigns, reverse repurchase agreements and deevatie
prohibited. The issuance of taxable notes forpilmpose of arbitrage, the use of leverage and skditg are also
prohibited. Historically, the District has not phased these types of investments or issued these of notes. An
investment must mature within five years from tlagedof purchase unless matched to a specific dldigar debt of
the District, and must be purchased with the exgiiext that it will be held to maturity.

Cash on Hand At year-end the District had $633 in undepositashcon hand which is included on the balance
sheet of the District as part of “cash and caslivedents”.

The following information classifies deposits angdéstments by categories of risk as defined in G/A&Bement
No. 40, “Deposit and Investment Risk Disclosuresgmendment of GASB Statement No. 3)".

Cash in Segregated Accounts: At June 30, 2013, the District had $4,00@thletic checking accounts which is
included in the total “Deposits” in the next paragin.
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NOTE 5 - EQUITY IN POOLED CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Ctinued)

Deposits: At June 30, 2013, the carrying amount of theriRiss deposits was $6,896,647 and the bank balamse
$7,744,235. Of the entire bank balance, $3,712v&85covered by federal depository insurance v#dl©31,550
was exposed to custodial credit risk as describg8lASB Statement No. 40 further discussed below.

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the eivehbank failure, the District’'s deposits may betreturned. State
statutes require deposits to be collateralized wlitfible securities in amounts equal to at le@&% of the carrying
value of the deposits. Such collateral, as peenhitty the Ohio Revised Code, is held in singlerfoia institution
collateral pools at Federal Reserve Banks, or atlmee banks of the federal reserve system, in theerat the
respective depository bank and pledged as a pamiltzteral against all of the public depositsatds or as specific
collateral held at the Federal Reserve Bank imdmae of the District.

I nvestments:
As of June 30, 2013, the District had the followingestments and maturities:
Maturities
6 months or less  Fair Value
STAR Ohio $1,057,850 $ 1,057,850

Interest Rate RiskAs a means of limiting its exposure to fair valogses arising from rising interest rates and in
accordance with the Ohio Revised Code, the Di&griotestment policy limits investment maturitiesfive years or
less. Commercial paper must mature within 180 days

Credit Risk: The District’s investment policy limits investmerib securities specifically authorized by the Ohio
Revised Code. As of June 30, 2013, the Distriotestments consisted of STAR Ohio (the Statestnent pool)
which was rated AAAm by Standard & Poor's. STARio must maintain the highest letter or numeniatihg
provided by at least one nationally recognizeddsath service.

Custodial Credit Risk:For an investment, custodial credit risk is tiek that, in the event of the failure of the
counterparty, the District will not be able to reeothe value of its investment or collateral séms that are in the
possession of an outside party. The District lavestment policy dealing with investment cusabdisk;
however, the District minimizes custodial credirby utilizing multiple safekeeping agents forkitsok-entry
securities.

Concentration of Credit RiskThe District places no limit on the amount thety be invested in any one issuer,
although Ohio law sets limits on investments in owrcial paper. One hundred percent of the invessrigeld at
June 30, 2013, were in the State investment pool.

Reconciliation of Cash and | nvestments to the Statement of Net Position: The following is a reconciliation
between cash and investments as reported in tieedirgy paragraphs to that reported on in the staitsmof net
position:

Cash and Investments per footnote:

Cash on hand $ 633
Carrying amount of deposits 6,896,647
Investments 1,057,850
Total $7,955,130

Cash and Investments per Statements of Net Pasition

Government Wide $7,862,242
Fiduciary Funds 92,888
$7,955,130
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NOTE 6 — TAXES
A. Property Tax

Property taxes are levied and assessed on a calgatabasis. Distributions from the second hathe calendar
year occur in a new fiscal year and are intenddithémce the operations of that year. Propertgddarclude
amounts levied against all real, public utility aadgible (used in business) property located énDfstrict.

Real property taxes and public utility taxes akéde after November 1 on the assessed value lastexf the prior
January 1, the lien date. Assessed values atalisbtad by State law at 35% of appraised marketezal

Public utility property taxes are assessed on lagiersonal property, as well as land and imprerém Real
property is assessed at 35% of market value arsbpalproperty is assessed at 100% of market exicept for the
personal property of rural electric companies wiéchssessed at 50% of market and railroads whehssessed at
29%.

In 2005, the General Assembly of the State of Qlaissed the State Biennial Budget Bill (HB 66) titzised-out
Tangible Personal Property Tax over a four-yeaioperBased upon 2004 personal property valuedd“ho
harmless” payments were to be made by the Statptace this revenue source for school distriatsugh fiscal
year 2010 at which time these payments would adsphased out. The State Biennial Budget Bill (HBdssed in
2009 extended the full reimbursement through figear 2013, however, the State Biennial Budget(BiB 153)
passed in 2011 reduced this reimbursement by 2#talfDistrict revenues for each of the two yezrthe budget.
The District received “hold harmless” paymentsigtél year 2012 in the amount of $2,230,899, acatol of
$572,990 from fiscal year 2011 payments, and rece$i,652,492 in fiscal year 2013, a further reidnodf
$578,407.

The total assessed value upon which the 2013 tares collected was $584,008,090. Agricultural/Restial,
public utility and mineral real estate represerécb% or $388,121,690 of this total; Commercialr&ustrial real
estate represented 32.5% or $189,583,740; andcputility tangible 26 or $6,302,660. Tax exempt property in the
District totaled $268,740,470. The voted generakée for operations at the fiscal year ended B013,

was $49.85 per $1,000.00 of assessed valuationptied rate for debt service was $2.6 per $1,000f@®sessed
valuation; and the voted rate for permanent impnueets was $1.20 per $1,000.00 of assessed valuation

Real property taxes are payable annually or semitaty. If paid annually, payment is due Janud@yiPpaid
semi-annually, the first payment is due Januarwi2® the remainder payable by June 20.

The Wood County Treasurer collects property takemalf of the District. The Wood County Auditorrjpelically
remits to the District its portion of the taxesleoted. These tax "advances" are based on statdsh flow
collection rates. Final "settlements" are madénéabruary and August.

Accrued property taxes receivable represent dedingjtaxes outstanding and real property, persaoglgoty and
public utility taxes which became measurable, icoadance with GASB 33, as of June 30, 2013. Algmtotal
property tax collections for the next fiscal yese measurable, they are not (exclusive of advarings)ded to
finance current year operations. The net rece@véibtal receivable less amount available intertddhance the
current year) is therefore offset by a credit teeded inflows of resources.

B. School District Income Tax

The District levies an income tax of 0.5% on thesgr salaries, wages and other personal service es@agon
earned by residents of the School District. A# tievenue received from income tax is recordecctiyrénto the
General Fund.



BOWLING GREEN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
WOOD COUNTY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 7 - RECEIVABLES

Receivables at June 30, 2013, consisted of tagespats (charges for services and fees), accraerkst, and

intergovernmental receivables. All receivablesamasidered collectible in full due to the abilit/foreclose for the

nonpayment of taxes and the stable condition offieeific State programs.

NOTE 8 - INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS

Interfund transfers for the fiscal year ended J8fge 2013, consisted of $40,000 from the GeneraldRonthe
Performing Arts Center Operations Fund and $300ff1 the General Fund to the Severance Benefitsl F0T he
transfer to the Severance Benefits Fund has beerinated on the financial statements due to the B/A3
reclassification of that fund as part of the Geh&mwnd. The transfers were accounted for in acued with

budgetary authorizations

and with Ohio Revised C®eletions 5705.14, 5705.15 and 5705.16.

NOTE 9 - CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary by category of changegdavernmental activities capital assets at Jupn@@03:

Historical Cost

Asset Category

Nondepreciable:
Land

Construction in Progress

Depreciable:

Buildings & Improvements

Furniture/Equipment
Vehicles

Total Depreciable Assets
Total General Capital Assets

Accumulated Depreciation

Asset Category

Buildings & Improvements

Furniture/Equipment
Vehicles

Total Accumulated Depreciation

Net Capital Assets

Balance at Balance at
7/1/12 Additions Deletions 6/30/13
$ 279,264 $ - $ - $ 279,264
3,114,194 - 3,114,194 -
$3,393,458 $ - $ 3,114,194 $ 279,264
39,911,914 4,885,575 - 44,797,489
4,168,224 23,234 - 4,191,458
2,042,292 - - 2,042,292
46,122,430 4,908,809 - 51,031,239
$ 49,515,888 4$08,809 $ 3,114,194 $ 51,310,503
Balance at Balance at
7/1/12 Additions Deletions 6/30/13
11,818,140 1,136,853 - 12,954,993
2,332,913 287,706 - 2,620,619
1,377,315 75,616 - 2,931
15,528,368 1,500,175 * - 17,028,543
$ 33,987,520 $ 3,408,634 $ 3,114,194 4281,960

* Depreciation expenses were charged to governrmtetions as follow:

Instruction $ 1,076,097
Support Services 369,253
Noninstructional Activities 14,819
Extracurricular Activities 400

Total Depreciation Expense $ 1,500,175



BOWLING GREEN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 9 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

A summary of the proprietary capital assets at ABhe013, follows:

Balance at Balance at
Depreciable: 7/1/12 Additions Deletions 6/30/13
Furniture/Equipment $ 320,658 $ 15,140 $ - $ 335,798
Vehicles 20,102 - - 20,102
Total Depreciable Assets $ 340,760 $ 15,140 - $ 355,900

Accumulated Depreciation
Furniture/Equipment (256,276) (10,754) - (267,030)
Vehicles - (2,781) - (2,781)

Total Accumulated Depreciation (256,276) (13,535) - (Z801)
Net Capital Assets $ 84,484 $ 1,605 $ - 6,089

NOTE 10 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

All current notes and bonds outstanding, issugatdeide funds for the acquisition and constructiéequipment
and facilities, are general obligations of the Bistfor which the full faith and credit of the it is pledged for

repayment.

A. . The following is a description of the Bowlil@reen City School District notes outstanding adusfe 30, 2013:

Notes New Issues Notes Due
Interest Issue Maturity Outstanding During Retired Outstanding Within
Rate Date Date At 7/1/12 2013 In 2013 At 6/30/13 1 Year
2012 Permanent
Improvement Levy 2.5% 2/15/12 12/1/2015 $1,250,000 $ -0- $ 312,50% 937,500 $ 312,500
Tax Anticipation
Note

B. The following is a summary of the District's futimenual debt service requirements to maturitydar t
anticipation notes:

Year Ending Principal on Interest on

June 30 TAN TAN Total

2014 312,500 19,531 332,031
2015 312,500 11,719 324,219
2016 312,500 3,906 316,406
Total $937,500 $ 35,156 $972,656

C. The following is a description of the Bowlingeen City School District bonds outstanding asuniel30, 2013:

Bonds New Issues Bonds Due
Interest Issue Maturity Qutstanding During Retired Outstanding Within
Rate Date Date At 7/1/12 2013 In 2013 At 6/30/13 1 Year
2007
School Facilities 3.5- 3/22/2007 12/1/2034 $25,505,000 $-0- $365,000 $IHADO $ 405,000
Construction and 5.0%
Improvement
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NOTE 10 - LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

D. The following is a summary of the District'sdfte annual debt service requirements to matusitgéneral
obligation bonds:

Year Ending Principal on Interest on
June 30 General Obligation General Obligation Total
2014 405,000 1,194,700 1,599,700
2015 450,000 1,179,175 1,629,175
2016 495,000 1,161,456 1,656,456
2017 540,000 1,142,050 1,682,050
2018 590,000 1,120,125 1,710,125
2019-2023 3,910,000 5,087,375 8,997,375
2024-2028 5,925,000 3,869,750 9,794,750
2029-2033 8,520,000 2,148,488 10,668,488
2034-2035 4,305,000 218,875 4,523,875
Total $25,140,000 $17,121,994 $42,261,994

E. During the year ended June 30, 2013 the follgwimanges occurred in Governmental Activities |terga

liabilities:

Governmental Activities

Balance at Balance at Due Within
7/1/12 Increase Decrease 6/30/13 1 Year
Compensated Absences:
Sick leave (severance) $2,499,407 $ 512,346 $ 905,014 $ 2,106,739 $ 91,261
Vacation 228,585 188,091 198,633 218,043 , 4B
Tax Anticipation Notes 1,250,000 - 312,500 980,5 312,500
General Obligation Bonds 25,505,000 - 365,000 ,145%,000 405,000
Unamortized Bond Premium 1,193,754 - 53,056 1,498 53,056
Total $30,676,746 $ 700,437 $1,834,203  $29,542,980 $1,079,860

Business-type Activities:
Compensated Absences:
Sick leave (severance) $ 65,096 $8,241 $2,049 $71,288 $ -

The District has established a Severance Benafits Fas permitted by H.B. 426, to liquidate acclated sick
leave upon retirement of employees while sick leave vacation benefits enjoyed by active emplogeegaid by
the fund from which the employee is normally paidmost cases the General Fund.

NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of lodateH to torts, theft of, damage to, and destraotibassets; errors
and omissions; injuries to employees; and natusalsters. The District maintains comprehensivernemial
insurance coverage for real property, building eotd, general liability, and vehicles. Vehicleipiels include
liability coverage for bodily injury and propertyachage. Real property and contents have a liafiitify of
$111,957,296 with 100% co-insurance. The Distritdist insurance policy has a liability limit of £ID0,000 each
occurrence. The District has liability insurance@age limits of $4,000,000 each occurrence andd®6000
annual aggregate.

Settled claims resulting from these risks haveexaeeded the commercial insurance coverage in fahe @ast
three fiscal years. There have been no significadhtictions in insurance coverage from last year.
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NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Wood County Schools Health Insurance Consortium

The Wood County Schools Health Insurance ConsorfthenConsortium) is a public entity shared risblpo
consisting of six local school districts, two cityexempted village school districts, one vocatigehool district,
and an educational service center. The Consoiiwrganized as a Voluntary Employee Benefit Asstimn under
Section 501(c)(9) of the Internal Revenue Codemngides medical, dental, and other benefits teethployees of
the participating entities. Each participatingityist superintendent is appointed to an Adminigtea€Committee
which advises the Trustee, Huntington Bank, coringraspects of the Consortium.

Each entity decides which plans offered by the Adstiiative Committee will be extended to its empgley.
Participation in the Consortium is by written apption subject to acceptance by the Administrafieenmittee
and payment of monthly premiums. Financial infatioramay be obtained from Sharon Gillespie, Medidatual
of Ohio, 3737 Sylvania Avenue, Toledo, Ohio 43623.

NBEC Worker's Compensation Group Rating

The District participates in the Northern BuckeyduEational Council’'s Worker's Compensation GrougirigaPlan,
an insurance purchasing pool. This Group Ratiag Bllows school districts to group together taeptally
achieve a lower premium rate than they may otherlvésable to acquire as individual employers. Baein the
participating school districts pay an enrolimer fe the Plan to cover the costs of administetiggprogram.

NOTE 12 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS
A. School Employees Retirement System

The District contributes to the School EmployeesirBment System of Ohio (SERS), a cost-sharingipialt
employer public employee defined benefit pensi@m@ldministered by the School Employees RetireiBeatd.
SERS provides retirement and disability benefitsiual cost-of-living adjustments, and death beséditplan
members and beneficiaries. Authority to estaldisti amend benefits is provided by state statut€papter 3309
of the Ohio Revised Code. SERS issues a publidylable, stand-alone financial report that inckifieancial
statements and required supplementary informato®SERS. The report may be obtained by writintheoSchool
Employees Retirement System, 300 East Broad S8e#g 100, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3746 or by cgl(itiL4)
222-5853. The report is also posted on the SERS Wébsitewww.ohsers.orginder*Employers/Audit
Resources”

Plan members are required to contribute 10 pexfdhieir annual covered salary and Bowling Greey School
District is required to contribute at an actuayialetermined rate. The current rate is 14 perekahnual covered
payroll. A portion of the District’s contributios used to fund pension obligations with the remairbeing used to
fund health care benefitor fiscal year 2013, 13.05 percent and 0.05 pémfesnnual covered salary was the
portion used to fund pension obligations and dbéatiefits, respectively. The contribution requiratsef plan
members and employers are established and may dredah up to statutory maximum amounts of 10 pérfoen
plan members and 14 percent for employers by tHeSSRetirement Board. Chapter 3309 of the Ohioideel
Code provides statutory authority for member angleger contributions. The District's contributiciesSERS for
pension obligations and death benefits for theafigears ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and 2011 wW&@& %03,
$484,645, and $439,894, respectively. As of Juhe813, 46.00 percent has been contributed foalfigear 2013
and one hundred percent for fiscal years 2012 aid.2
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NOTE 12 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
B. State Teachers Retirement System

The District contributes to the State TeachersrBaient System of Ohio (STRS), a cost-sharing nielgépnployer
public employee retirement system administerechbyState Teachers Retirement Board. STRS provédiesment
and disability benefits to members, and death andwer benefits to beneficiaries. Benefits artabished by
Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Code. STRS isspeblicly available, stand-alone financial repbst includes
financial statements and required supplementagyrimdtion for STRS. The report may be obtained Lting to
the State Teachers Retirement System, 275 EastiBBwaet, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3371, by callintje227-
4090, or by visiting the STRS Ohio websitenatw.STRSoh.org under‘Publications”.

New members have a choice of three retirement pmefined Benefit (DB) Plan, a Defined Contributi(DC)

Plan and a Combined Plan. The DB plan offers aualretirement allowance based on final averatggystimes a
percentage that varies based on years of servican allowance based on a member’s lifetime coutigins and
earned interest matched by STRS Ohio funds divise@n actuarially determined annuity factor. Th€& Blan

allows members to place all their member contringiand employer contributions equal to 10.5 peroérarned
compensation into an investment account. Invedtimecisions are made by the member. A membdigible to

receive a retirement benefit at age 50 and termimatf employment. The member may elect to recaiviéetime

monthly annuity or a lump sum withdrawal. The Camebl Plan offers features of both the DC Plan dedQB

Plan. In the Combined Plan, member contributioesimrested by the member, and employer contribstare used
to fund the defined benefit payment at a reducedl frFom the regular DB Plan. The DB portion oétGombined
Plan payment is payable to a member on or aftei6@géhe DC portion of the account may be takea ksnp sum
or converted to a lifetime monthly annuity at agle Benefits are established by Chapter 3307 ofthi® Revised
Code

A DB or Combined Plan member with five or more gearedited service who becomes disabled may qualify
disability benefit. Eligible spouses and depensl@itthese active members who die before retiremmeayt qualify
for survivor benefits. Members in the DC Plan wiezome disabled are entitledly to their account balance. If a
member of the DC Plan dies before retirement benéggin, the member’s designated beneficiary igleoh to
receive the member’s account balance.

Funding Policy - For fiscal year 2013, plan memheese required to contribute 10 percent of themuah covered
salaries. The District was required to contrib@ite percent; 13 percent was the portion used to fugrsion
obligations. Contribution rates are establishedheyState Teachers Retirement Board, upon recodutiens of

its consulting actuary, not to exceed statutory imarn rates of 10 percent for members and 14 perfmnt
employers. Chapter 3307 of the Ohio Revised Codwiges statutory authority for member and employer
contributions.

The District’s required contributions for pensidnligations to STRS Ohio for the fiscal years endede 30, 2013,
2012 and 2011 were $2,083,654, $1,990,401, and32084 respectively; 83.59 percent has been camebfor
fiscal year 2013 and 100 percent for fiscal ye@bs22and 2011.
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NOTE 12 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)
C. Social Security System

Effective July 1, 1991, all employees not otherwiegered by the School Employees Retirement Systetime
State Teachers Retirement System have an opticimotmse Social Security or the School Employeeg&taént
System/State Teachers Retirement System. As ef30n2013, certain members of the Board of Edocdtave
elected Social Security. The Board's liabilityi2 percent of wages paid.

NOTE 13 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS
A. School Employees Retirement System

Plan Description - The District participates in te@st-sharing, multiple employer postemploymentdiéplans
administered by the School Employees Retiremene8y§SERS) for non-certificated retirees and their
beneficiaries, a Health Care Plan and a MedicareB’Blan. The Health Care Plan includes hospatitin and
physicians' fees through several types of plansiditg HMO’s, PPO’s, Medicare Advantage, and triadil
indemnity plans. A prescription drug program soahvailable to those who elect health coveradgeR SSemploys
two third-party administrators and a pharmacy bienginager to manage the self-insurance and ppigeridrug
plans, respectively. The Medicare Part B Plan beirses Medicare Part B premiums paid by eligiblieees and
beneficiaries as set forth in Section 3309.69 ef@hio Revised Code. Qualified benefit recipient® \pay
Medicare Part B premiums may apply for and recaiveonthly reimbursement from SERS. The reimbursg¢me
amount is limited by statute to the lesser of tneudry 1, 1999 Medicare Part B premium or the ctipeemium.
The Medicare Part B premium for calendar year 2048 $104.90 for most participants, but could bkigls as
$335.70 per month depending on their income an&HERS’ reimbursement to retirees was $45.50. Benef
provisions and the obligations to contribute atetdished by the System based on authority graoyeState statute.
The financial reports of both Plans are includethe SERS Comprehensive Annual Financial Repoitiwis
available by contacting SERS at 300 East BroadSsite 100, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3746. It is @issted on
the SERS’ Ohio websiteyww.ohsers.orgunder‘Employers/Audit Resources”

Funding Policy - State statute permits SERS to tinechealth care benefits through employer coniiobg. Each
year, after the allocation for statutorily requiteehefits, the Retirement Board allocates the nedsaiof the
employer contribution of 14 percent of covered péyo the Health Care Fund. The Health Care Fuad
established and is administered in accordancelniigninal Revenue Code Section 105(e). For 201% Percent of
covered payroll was allocated to health care. dditeonal health care surcharge on employers ikctd for
employees earning less than an actuarially deteanininimum compensation amount, pro-rated accoring
service credit earned. Statutes provide that no@par shall pay a health care surcharge greaser 2t0 percent of
that employer’'s SERS-covered payroll; nor may SEBfct in aggregate more than 1.5 percent of tikewide
SERS-covered payroll for the health care surchakge.fiscal year 2013, the actuarially determiaetbunt was
$20,525.

Active members do not contribute to the postemplaynbenefit plans. The Retirement Board estalsishe rules
for the premiums paid by the retirees for healtte @verage for themselves and their dependerits treir
surviving beneficiaries. Premiums vary dependindhe plan selected, qualified years of servicedivire
eligibility and retirement status.

The District’s contributions for health care (inding surcharge) for the fiscal years ended Jun2@03, 2012 and
2011 were $37,080, $50,842, and $83,565 respegtd€l00 percent has been contributed for fiscat #9013 and
100 percent for fiscal years 2012 and 2011.
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NOTE 13 - POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

The Retirement Board, acting with advice of theuant, allocates a portion of the employer contitdruto the
Medicare B Fund. For fiscal year 2013, this adaligrrequired allocation was 0.74 percent of ceeepayroll. The
District’s contributions for Medicare Part B fortfiscal years ended June 30, 2013, 2012, and ®8id $26,601
$28,621, and $28,308 respectively; 46.00 percesibbean contributed for fiscal year 2013 and 10@eyerfor fiscal
years 2012 and 2011.

B. State Teachers Retirement System of Ohio

Plan Description - The District contributes to test sharing, multiple employer defined benefit ltleRlan (the
“Plan™) administered by the State Teachers RetirgrBgstem of Ohio (STRS Ohio) for eligible retiradso
participated in the defined benefit or combinedsi@m plans offered by STRS Ohio. Benefits include
hospitalization, physicians’ fees, prescriptiongfrand reimbursement of monthly Medicare Part Bnpres. The
Plan is included in the report of STRS Ohio whiclyrbe obtained by visitingww.strsoh.orgunder
“Publications” or by calling (888) 227-7877.

Funding Policy - Ohio law authorizes STRS Ohio ffeiothe Plan and gives the Retirement Board aitthover
how much, if any, of the health care costs wildbsorbed by STRS Ohio. Active employee memberrsotio
contribute to the Plan. All benefit recipients @agnonthly premium. Under Ohio law, funding forspemployment
health care may be deducted from employer contabsit For 2013, STRS Ohio allocated employer doutions
equal to 1 percent of covered payroll to the He@ltine Stabilization Fund. The District’s contrilous for health
care for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2013, 2682011 were $148,832, $153,108, and $157,95@ectively;
83.59 percent has been contributed for fiscal 2848 and 100 percent for fiscal years 2012 and 2011

NOTE 14 - OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFITS - DEFERRED COMPEATION PLANS

The District employees may participate in the Gbitolic Employees Deferred Compensation Plan craated
accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section #&fticipation is on a voluntary payroll deductlmsis. The
plan permits deferral of compensation until futyears. According to the plan, the deferred comgigms is not
available to employees until termination, retiremeieath or unforeseeable emergency.

The plan Agreement states that the District andbthi® Public Employees Deferred Compensation Bbana no
liability for losses under the plan with the exdéeptof fraud or wrongful taking.



BOWLING GREEN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
WOOD COUNTY

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

NOTE 15 - SET-ASIDES

The District is required by State law to annualgt-aside certain general fund revenue amounts.efised by
statutory formula, for the acquisition and condiinrc of capital improvements. Amounts not spentt®yend of the
fiscal year or offset by similarly restricted resoes received during the year must be held in easiscal year-end.
This amount must be carried forward to be usedHersame purpose in future years. Expendituresesiing the
set-aside requirement may not be carried forwatteémext fiscal year.

The following cash-basis information describes thange in the fiscal year-end set-aside amountcémital
improvements. Disclosure of this information iguiged by State statute.

Capital
Improvements
Set-aside balance June 30, 2012 $ -
Current year set-aside requirement 515,160

Contributions in excess of the current
fiscal year set-aside requirement -

Current year qualifying expenditures -
Excess qualified expenditures from prior years -
Current year offsets (527,739)
Waiver granted by ODE -

Prior year offset from bond proceeds -

Total $ (12,579)
Balance carried forward to fiscal year 2014 $ -
Set-aside balance June 30, 2013 $ -

NOTE 16 - OTHER COMMITMENTS

The District uses encumbrance accounting as pdtt bfidgetary controls. Encumbrances outstanalingar end
may be reported as part of restricted, committe@ssigned classifications of fund balance. Atryeal, the
District's commitments for encumbrances in the goweental funds were as follows:

Fund Year-End Encumbrances
General $ 233,157
Other Governmental 41,126
Total $ 274,283
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NOTE 17 - FUND BALANCES

As of June 30, 2013, fund balances are compos#tdbllowing:

Other Total
Governmental Governmental
General Funds Funds
Nonspendable:
Inventory $ 77,300 $ 77,300
Prepaid items 133,492 369 133,861
Memorials Principal 63,447 63,447
Restricted:
State Grants 5,400 5,400
Federal Grants 1,989 1,989
Extracurricular activities 91,695 91,695
Buildings and Improvements 911,463 911,463
Debt Service 818,368 818,368
Instructional Enhancements 54,221 54,221
Non-Public Schools 8,087 8,087
Commited:
Severance Benef 442,68t 442,68t
Performing Arts Center Enhancements 2,174 2,174
Assigned:
Future Appropriations 2,590,520 2,590,520
Public School Support 33,019 33,019
Student Instruction 85,061 85,061
Student and Staff Supp 143,09 143,09
Unassigned 4,261,362 4,261,362
Total Funds Cash Balance $ 7,771,539 1,957,213% 9,728,752

Restricted fund balances are constrained by extgimgosed requirements by grantors, laws and legiguns.
Committed fund balances have been establishedebBdlard of Education through resolution or contratt
obligations. Board action would be necessary vense the purposes for which such funds have be@mdted.
Assigned fund balances are intended to be useatidspecified purposes as determined either bfista! officer
as directed by Section 5705.41(D), Ohio RevisedeGwrdbther authoritative guidelines. The Distdohsiders all
fund balances to be spent when an expenditureisried for purposes for which the balance is ak&lar could be
used.

-41-
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NOTE 18 - CONTINGENCIES
A. Grants

The School District received financial assistamoenffederal and state agencies in the form of grartie
expenditure of funds received under these proggemerally requires compliance with terms and caoruit
specified in the grant agreements and is subjestidit by the grantor agencies. Any disallowednstaiesulting
from such audits could become a liability of then€&ml Fund or other applicable funds. However gifiect of any
such disallowed claims on the overall financialifjos of the School District at June 30, 2013,ppécable, cannot
be determined at this time.

B. Litigation

As of the balance sheet date, the District wasmtived in any litigation as either defendant taiptiff.
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Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance -

Revenues:

From local sources:
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Interest
Tuition and fees

Charges for services

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction
Support services
Non-instructiona services

Extracurricular activities

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sour ces (uses):
Operating transfers (out)
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Refund of prior years expenditures

Refund of prior year receipts
Total other financing sour ces (uses)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and

other financing sources over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balance, July 1
Prior year encumbrances appropriated
Fund balance, June 30

Note:

While reporting financial position and changesin financial position/fund balances on the basis of generally accepted

Bowling Green City School District, Wood County

Budget to Actual (Budgetary Basis) - General Fund
For the Fiscal Y ear Ended June 30, 2013

Origina Revised Variance with
Budget Budget Actua Final Budget
$ 18,065591 $ 18065591 $ 18,279,368 $ 213,777
10,066,280 9,947,397 9,929,352 (18,045)
20,000 20,000 34,450 14,450
123,922 123,922 429,065 305,143
_ - 4,925 4,925
_ - 74,243 74,243
28,275,793 28,156,910 28,751,403 594,493
19,137,247 19,137,248 18,217,612 919,636
11,726,612 11,726,612 10,732,897 993,715
3,000 133,000 132,361 639
647,360 647,360 571,832 75,528
31,514,219 31,644,220 29,654,702 1,989,518
(3,238,426) (3,487,310) (903,299) 2,584,011
(300,000) (340,000) (340,000) -
_ - 10,343 10,343
(1,000) (1,000) (24) 976
(301,000) (341,000) (329,681) 11,319
(3,539,426) (3,828,310) (1,232,980) 2,595,330
5,844,188 5,844,188 5,844,188 -
275,333 275,333 275,333 -
$ 2,580,095 $ 2,291,211 $ 4886541 $ 2,595,330

accounting principles (GAAP), the budgetary basis as provided by law is based upon accounting for certain transactions
on abasis of cash receipts and disbursements. The adjustments necessary to convert the results of operations for
the year on the budget basis to the GAAP basis for the General Fund are as follows:

Net Changein Fund Balances

Budget Basis

Net adjustment for revenue accruals
Net adjustment for expenditure accruas
Adjustment for encumbrances
Reclassification of funds per GASB 54
GAAP Basis

Genera Fund

$  (1,232,980)
1,714,760
122,999
433,616
(379,917)
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BOWLING GREEN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013

(A) (8) (8)
FEDERAL GRANTOR/ PASS-THROUGH CASH CASH
SUB GRANTOR/ CFDA GRANT FEDERAL FEDERAL
PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER NUMBER RECEIPTS DISBURSEMENTS
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE
PASSED THROUGH THE
OHIO DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
Child Nutrition Grant Cluster:
(D) (E) School Breakfast Program 10.553 2013 $ 92,067 $ 92,067
(D) (E) National School Lunch Program 10.555 2013 415,433 415,433
(C) (D) National School Lunch Program - Food Donation 10.555 2013 135,764 135,764
Total National School Lunch Program 551,197 551,197
Total Child Nutrition Grant Cluster 643,264 643,264
State Administrative Expenses for Child Nutrition 10.560 2013 3,073 -
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 646,337 643,264

U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION
PASSED THROUGH THE
OHIO DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Title I Grant Cluster:

F) Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 2012

(3] Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies 84.010 2013
Total Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies

(3] ARRA - Title | Grants to Local Educational Agencies, Recovery Act 84.389 2012 7,952 -
Total Title I Grant Cluster 399,598 416,543

Special Education Grant Cluster:

(G) Special Education_Grants to States 84.027 2012 - 36,327

G) Special Education_Grants to States 84.027 2013 676,993 661,046

Total Special Education_Grants to States 676,993 697,373

(G) Special Education-Preschool Grants 84.173 2013 20,706 20,706

Total Special Education Grant Cluster 697,699 718,079

Education Technology State Grants 84.318 2013 8,893 8,893

(H) ()  English Language Acquisition Grants 84.365 2012 (303) -
[0} Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 2012 4,738
m Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 2013 7
Total Improving Teach Quality State Grants 5

Education Jobs Fund 84.410 2013 - 14,646

Total U.S. Department of Education 1,176,732 1,229,270

Total Federal Financial Assistance $ 1,823,069 $ 1,872,534

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF RECEIPTS AND EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS:

(A) OAKS did not assign pass-through numbers for fiscal year 2013.

(B) This schedule was prepared on the cash basis of accounting.

©) The Food Donation Program is a non-cash, in kind, federal grant. Commodities are reported at the fair value.

(D) Included as part of "Child Nutrition Grant Cluster" in determining major programs.

(E) Commingled with state and local revenue from sales of lunches; assumed expenditures were made on a first-in, first-out basis.
F) Included as part of "Title | Grant Cluster" in determining major programs.

©) Included as part of “Special Education Grant Cluster” in determining major programs.

(H) $1,366 was repaid to the Ohio Department of Education based on the expiration of period of availability

m The District generally must spend Federal assistance within 15 months of receipt (funds must be obligated by June 30th and

spent by September 30th). However, with Ohio Department of Education ("ODE")'s approval, a District can transfer unspent
Federal assistance to the succeeding year, thus allowing the District a total of 27 months to spend the assistance. Schools can
document this by using special cost centers for each year's activity, and transferring the amounts ODE approves between the
cost centers. During fiscal year 2013, the ODE authorized the following transfers:

Program Title CFDA Grant Year Transfers Out Transfers In
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 2012 $ 58
Improving Teacher Quality State Grants 84.367 2013 $ 58
English Language Acquisition Grants 84.365 2012 1,366
English Language Acquisition Grants 84.365 2013 1,366
Totals $ 1,424 $ 1,424
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Julian & Grube, Inc.

Serving Ohio Local Governments
333 County Line Rd. West, Westerville, OH 43082 Phone: 614.846.1899 Fax: 614.846.2799

Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance
and Other Matters Required by Government Accounting Standards

Bowling Green City School District
Wood County

137 Clough Street

Bowling Green, Ohio 43402

To the Board of Education:

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States and the Comptroller
General of the United States’ Government Auditing Standards, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, its major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Bowling
Green City School District, Wood County, Ohio, as of and for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, and the related
notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Bowling Green City School District’s basic
financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 20, 2013.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

As part of our financial statement audit, we considered the Bowling Green City School District’s internal control
over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures appropriate in the circumstances to the
extent necessary to support our opinions on the financial statements, but not to the extent necessary to opine on the
effectiveness of the Bowling Green City School District’s internal control. Accordingly, we have not opined on it.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, when performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and timely correct misstatements. A
material weakness is a deficiency, or combination of internal control deficiencies resulting in a reasonable
possibility that internal control will not prevent or detect and timely correct a material misstatement of the Bowling
Green City School District’s financial statements. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention
by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and
was not designed to identify all internal control deficiencies that might be material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies. Given these limitations, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider
material weaknesses. However, unidentified material weaknesses may exist.
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Board of Education
Bowling Green City School District

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of reasonably assuring whether the Bowling Green City School District’s financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we tested its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements, noncompliance with which could directly and materially affect the determination of financial statement
amounts. However, opining on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit and accordingly,
we do not express an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters we
must report under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

This report only describes the scope of our internal control and compliance testing and our testing results, and does
not opine on the effectiveness of the Bowling Green City School District’s internal control or on compliance. This
report is an integral part of an audit performed under Government Auditing Standards in considering the Bowling
Green City School District’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for
any other purpose.

Julian & Grube, Inc.
November 20, 2013
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Julian & Grube, Inc.

Serving Ohio Local Governments
333 County Line Rd. West, Westerville, OH 43082 Phone: 614.846.1899 Fax: 614.846.2799

Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance With Requirements Applicable to Each
Major Federal Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance
Required by OMB Circular A-133

Bowling Green City School District
Wood County

137 Clough Street

Bowling Green, Ohio 43402

To the Board of Education:
Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

We have audited the Bowling Green City School District’s compliance with the applicable requirements described
in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, Compliance Supplement that could directly
and materially affect the Bowling Green City School District’s major federal program for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2013. The Summary of Audit Results in the accompanying schedule of findings identifies the Bowling Green
City School District’s major federal program.

Management’s Responsibility

The Bowling Green City School District’s Management is responsible for complying with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its federal programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to opine on the Bowling Green City School District’s compliance for each of the Bowling
Green City School District’s major federal programs based on our audit of the applicable compliance requirements
referred to above. Our compliance audit followed auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards for financial audits included in the Comptroller General of the United States’ Government
Auditing Standards; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.
These standards and OMB Circular A-133 require us to plan and perform the audit to reasonably assure whether
noncompliance with the applicable compliance requirements referred to above that could directly and materially
affect a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Bowling
Green City School District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe our audit provides a reasonable basis for our compliance opinion on the Bowling Green City School
District’s major program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Bowling Green City
School District’s compliance.

Opinion on the Major Federal Program

In our opinion, the Bowling Green City School District complied, in all material respects with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could directly and materially affect its major federal program for the fiscal year
ended June 30, 2013.
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Board of Education
Bowling Green City School District

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

The Bowling Green City School District’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with the applicable compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and
performing our compliance audit, we considered the Bowling Green City School District’s internal control over
compliance with the applicable requirements that could directly and materially affect a major federal program, to
determine our auditing procedures appropriate for opining on each major federal program’s compliance and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not to the extent
needed to opine on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we have not opined on the
effectiveness of the Bowling Green City School District’s internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over compliance
does not allow management or employees, when performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or to timely detect
and correct, noncompliance with a federal program’s applicable compliance requirement. A material weakness in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a federal program compliance
requirement will not be prevented, or timely detected and corrected. A significant deficiency in internal control over
compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with federal
program’s applicable compliance requirement that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over
compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been
identified.

This report only describes the scope of our internal control compliance tests and the results of this testing based on
OMB Circular A-133 requirements. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Julian & Grube, Inc.
November 20, 2013
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BOWLING GREEN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
WOOD COUNTY, OHIO

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS
OMB CIRCULAR A-133 § .505

JUNE 30, 2013

1. SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

@@ Type of Financial Statement Opinion Unmodified
(d)(1)(ii) Were there any material control weaknesses | No
reported at the financial statement level
(GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(ii) Were there any significant deficiencies in | No
internal control reported at the financial
statement level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(iii) Was there any reported material | No
noncompliance at the financial statement
level (GAGAS)?
(d)(1)(iv) Were there any material internal control | No
weaknesses reported for major federal
programs?
(d)(1)(iv) Were there any significant deficiencies in | No
internal control reported for major federal
programs?
d)(1)(v) Type of Major Programs’ Compliance | Unmodified
Opinion
(d)(2)(vi) Are there any reportable findings under | No
8.510(a)?
. ; ; . Special Education Grant Cluster: Special
(@)(vii) Major Programs (listed): Education Grants to States, CFDA #84.027,
Special Education Preschool Grants, CFDA
#84.173
(d)(1)(viii) Dollar Threshold: Type A/B Programs Type A: >$300,000
Type B: all others
(d)(1)(ix) Low Risk Auditee? Yes

2. FINDINGS RELATED TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

None

3. FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS FOR FEDERAL AWARDS

None
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Dave Yost - Auditor of State

BOWLING GREEN CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT
WOOD COUNTY
CLERK'S CERTIFICATION

This is atrue and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the Office of the
Auditor of State pursuant to Section 117.26, Revised Code, and which is filed in Columbus, Ohio.

Livan Poablutt

CLERK OF THE BUREAU

CERTIFIED
JANUARY 21, 2014

88 East Broad Street, Fourth Floor, Columbus, Ohio 43215-3506
Phone: 614-466-4514 or 800-282-0370 Fax: 614-466-4490
www.ohioauditor.gov
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